
 

 
 
 

 
2 October 2017 

 
TO: COUNCILLORS 
 

N DELANEY (CHAIRMAN), T DEVINE (VICE-CHAIRMAN), 
J CAIRNS, J GORDON, N HENNESSY, G HODSON, J KAY, 
D MCKAY, J MEE, MS R MELLING, G OWEN, A OWENS, 
A PRITCHARD, MRS D STEPHENSON AND K WRIGHT 
 

Dear Councillor, 
 
A meeting of the LICENSING & GAMBLING COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL 
CHAMBER, 52 DERBY STREET, ORMSKIRK L39 2DF on TUESDAY, 10 OCTOBER 
2017 at 7.00 PM at which your attendance is requested. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
Kim Webber 
Chief Executive 

AGENDA 
(Open to the Public) 

 
1.   APOLOGIES   

 
 

2.   MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE  
To be apprised of any changes to the membership of the Committee in 
accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4. 
 

 

3.   URGENT BUSINESS  
Note:  No other business is permitted unless, by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified at the meeting, the Chairman 
is of the opinion that the item(s) should be considered as a matter of 
urgency. 
 
 

 

Kim Webber B.Sc. M.Sc. 
Chief Executive 
 

52 Derby Street 
Ormskirk 
West Lancashire 
L39 2DF 
 



 

4.   DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP  
Party Whips are not to be used by this Committee in respect of 
functions concerning the determination of new Licence Applications, 
Revocations and Appeals.  When considering any other matter which 
relates to a decision of the Cabinet or the performance of any Member 
of the Cabinet, in accordance with Regulatory Committee Procedure 
Rule 9, Members must declare the existence of any Party Whip and 
the nature of it, before the commencement of the Committee’s 
deliberations on the matter. 
 

 

5.   DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
If a Member requires advice on Declarations of Interest, he/she is 
advised to contact the Borough Solicitor in advance of the meeting.  
(For the assistance of members a checklist for use in considering their 
position on any particular item is included at the end of the agenda 
sheet). 
 

1 - 2 

6.   MINUTES  
To receive as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 5 
April 2016. 
 

3 - 4 

7.   MINUTES OF SUB- COMMITTEES  
To note the minutes from the Licensing Sub – Committee held on:- 
19 July 2016 
21 September 2016 
24 January 2017 
10 February 2017 
24 May 2017 
6 June 2017 
 

5 - 22 

8.   APPROVAL OF REVISED SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENSING 
POLICY  
To consider the report of the Director of Leisure and Wellbeing. 
 

23 - 74 

 
 
 
We can provide this document, upon request, on audiotape, in large print, in Braille 
and in other languages.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE: Please see attached sheet. 
MOBILE PHONES: These should be switched off or to ‘silent’ at all meetings. 
 
For further information, please contact:- 
Julia Brown on 01695 585065 
Or email julia.brown@westlancs.gov.uk 



 

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE FOR: 
COUNCIL MEETINGS WHERE OFFICERS ARE PRESENT  

(52 DERBY STREET, ORMSKIRK) 
 

PERSON IN CHARGE:  Most Senior Officer Present 
ZONE WARDEN:   Member Services Officer / Lawyer 
DOOR WARDEN(S)  Usher / Caretaker 

 
IF YOU DISCOVER A FIRE 

 
1.  Operate the nearest FIRE CALL POINT by breaking the glass. 
2.  Attack the fire with the extinguishers provided only if you have been trained and it is 

safe to do so. Do not take risks. 
 

ON HEARING THE FIRE ALARM 
 

1.  Leave the building via the NEAREST SAFE EXIT. Do not stop to collect personal 
belongings. 

2.  Proceed to the ASSEMBLY POINT on the car park and report your presence to the 
PERSON IN CHARGE. 

3.  Do NOT return to the premises until authorised to do so by the PERSON IN 
CHARGE. 

 
NOTES: 
Officers are required to direct all visitors regarding these procedures i.e. exit routes and 
place of assembly. 
The only persons not required to report to the Assembly Point are the Door Wardens. 
 

CHECKLIST FOR PERSON IN CHARGE 
 

1.  Advise other interested parties present that you are the person in charge in the event 
of an evacuation. 

2. Make yourself familiar with the location of the fire escape routes and informed any 
interested parties of the escape routes. 

3.  Make yourself familiar with the location of the assembly point and informed any 
interested parties of that location. 

4.  Make yourself familiar with the location of the fire alarm and detection control panel. 
5.  Ensure that the zone warden and door wardens are aware of their roles and 

responsibilities. 
6.  Arrange for a register of attendance to be completed (if considered appropriate / 

practicable). 
 

IN THE EVENT OF A FIRE, OR THE FIRE ALARM BEING SOUNDED 
 

1.  Ensure that the room in which the meeting is being held is cleared of all persons. 
2.  Evacuate via the nearest safe Fire Exit and proceed to the ASSEMBLY POINT in the 

car park. 
3.  Delegate a person at the ASSEMBLY POINT who will proceed to HOME CARE LINK 

in order to ensure that a back-up call is made to the FIRE BRIGADE. 
4.  Delegate another person to ensure that DOOR WARDENS have been posted outside 

the relevant Fire Exit Doors. 



 

5.  Ensure that the ZONE WARDEN has reported to you on the results of his checks, i.e. 
that the rooms in use have been cleared of all persons. 

6.  If an Attendance Register has been taken, take a ROLL CALL. 
7.  Report the results of these checks to the Fire and Rescue Service on arrival and 

inform them of the location of the FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL. 
8.  Authorise return to the building only when it is cleared to do so by the FIRE AND 

RESCUE SERVICE OFFICER IN CHARGE. Inform the DOOR WARDENS to allow 
re-entry to the building. 

 
NOTE: 
The Fire Alarm system will automatically call the Fire Brigade. The purpose of the 999 
back-up call is to meet a requirement of the Fire Precautions Act to supplement the 
automatic call. 
 

CHECKLIST FOR ZONE WARDEN 
 

1.  Carry out a physical check of the rooms being used for the meeting, including 
adjacent toilets, kitchen. 

2.  Ensure that ALL PERSONS, both officers and members of the public are made 
aware of the FIRE ALERT. 

3.  Ensure that ALL PERSONS evacuate IMMEDIATELY, in accordance with the FIRE 
EVACUATION PROCEDURE. 

4.  Proceed to the ASSEMBLY POINT and report to the PERSON IN CHARGE that the 
rooms within your control have been cleared. 

5.  Assist the PERSON IN CHARGE to discharge their duties. 
 
It is desirable that the ZONE WARDEN should be an OFFICER who is normally based in 
this building and is familiar with the layout of the rooms to be checked. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR DOOR WARDENS 
 

1.  Stand outside the FIRE EXIT DOOR(S) 
2.  Keep the FIRE EXIT DOOR SHUT. 
3.  Ensure that NO PERSON, whether staff or public enters the building until YOU are 

told by the PERSON IN CHARGE that it is safe to do so. 
4.  If anyone attempts to enter the premises, report this to the PERSON IN CHARGE. 
5.  Do not leave the door UNATTENDED. 
 
 



MEMBERS INTERESTS 2012 

A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter considered at a meeting must disclose the interest to 
the meeting at which they are present, except where it has been entered on the Register. 
A Member with a non pecuniary or pecuniary interest in any business of the Council must disclose the existence and 
nature of that interest at commencement of consideration or when the interest becomes apparent. 
Where sensitive information relating to an interest is not registered in the register, you must indicate that you have an 
interest, but need not disclose the sensitive information. 

Please tick relevant boxes         Notes 

 General    

1. I have a disclosable pecuniary interest.  You cannot speak or vote and must 
withdraw unless you have also 
ticked 5 below 

2. I have a non-pecuniary interest.  You may speak and vote 

3. I have a pecuniary interest because 

it affects my financial position or the financial position of a 
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii) 
and the interest is one which a member of the public with 
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as 
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the 
public interest 

or 

it relates to the determining of any approval consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to me or a 
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii) 
and the interest is one which a member of the public with 
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as 
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the 
public interest 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

You cannot speak or vote and must 
withdraw unless you have also 
ticked 5 or 6 below 

 

 

 

You cannot speak or vote and must 
withdraw unless you have also 
ticked 5 or 6 below 

4. 

 

I have a disclosable pecuniary interest (Dispensation 
20/09/16) or a pecuniary interest but it relates to the 
functions of my Council in respect of: 

  

(i) Housing where I am a tenant of the Council, and those 
functions do not relate particularly to my tenancy or lease. 

 You may speak and vote 

(ii) school meals, or school transport and travelling expenses 
where I am a parent or guardian of a child in full time 
education, or are a parent governor of a school, and it does 
not relate particularly to the school which the child attends. 

 

 

 

You may speak and vote 

(iii) Statutory sick pay where I am in receipt or entitled to receipt 
of such pay.  

 You may speak and vote 

(iv) An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members  You may speak and vote 

(v) Any ceremonial honour given to Members  You may speak and vote 

(vi) Setting Council tax or a precept under the LGFA 1992  You may speak and vote 

5. A Standards Committee dispensation applies (relevant lines 
in the budget – Dispensation 20/09/16 – 19/09/20) 

 See the terms of the dispensation 

6. I have a pecuniary interest in the business but I can attend 
to make representations, answer questions or give evidence 
as the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the 
same purpose 

 You may speak but must leave the 
room once you have finished and 
cannot vote 

‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ (DPI) means an interest of a description specified below which is your 
interest, your spouse’s or civil partner’s or the interest of somebody who you are living with as a husband 
or wife, or as if you were civil partners and you are aware that that other person has the interest. 

Interest Prescribed description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the relevant 
authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses 
incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election expenses of 
M. Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority— 

 (a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 

 (b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant authority. 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the relevant 
authority for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M's knowledge)— 

 (a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

 (b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

 (a) that body (to M's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
relevant authority; and 

 (b) either— 

 (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

 (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of 
the shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body 

corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest; 

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society; 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant 

person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income; “M” means a member of a relevant authority; 

“member” includes a co-opted member; “relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member; 

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives notice to the Monitoring Officer of a DPI; 

“relevant person” means M or M’s spouse or civil partner, a person with whom M is living as husband or wife or a person with 

whom M is living as if they were civil partners;  

 “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the 

meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited 

with a building society. 

‘non pecuniary interest’ means interests falling within the following descriptions: 
10.1(1)(i) Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and 

to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority; 
 (ii) Any body (a) exercising functions of a public nature; (b) directed to charitable purposes; or (c) 

one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 
(including any political party or trade union), of which you are a member or in a position of 
general control or management; 

 (iii) Any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right 
for you (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income. 

10.2(2) A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting your well-
being or financial position or the well-being or financial position of a connected person to a 
greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the 
ward, as the case may be, affected by the decision. 

‘a connected person’ means  
(a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association, or 
(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a 

partner, or any company of which they are directors; 
(c) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities 

exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
(d) any body of a type described in sub-paragraph 10.1(1)(i) or (ii). 
‘body exercising functions of a public nature’ means 
Regional and local development agencies, other government agencies, other Councils, public health 
bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions, arms length management organisations 
carrying out housing functions on behalf of your authority, school governing bodies. 
A Member with a personal interest who has made an executive decision in relation to that matter must 
ensure any written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest. 
NB  Section 21(13) of the LGA 2000 overrides any Code provisions to oblige an executive member to 
attend an overview and scrutiny meeting to answer questions. 

Page 2



LICENSING AND GAMBLING COMMITTEE            HELD: 5 APRIL 2016 
        Start:  7.00 P.M. 
        Finish:  7.12 P.M. 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Delaney (Chairman) 
  Councillor Devine (Vice Chairman) 
 
 
Councillors: Mrs. Baybutt   Ms. Melling  
  Dowling   Nixon  
  Mrs. C. Evans  Patterson 
  Kay    Pendleton 
  McKay   Mrs. Westley 
  Mee     Wright 
 
Officers: Commercial, Safety and Licensing Manager (Mr. P. Charlson) 
  Principal Solicitor (Mrs. K. Lovelady) 
  Senior Licensing Officer (Mrs. S. Jordan) 
  Member Services/Civic Support Officer (Mrs. J.A. Ryan) 
 
 

26. APOLOGIES 
 

There were no apologies for absence received.  
 
 

27. MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
There were no changes to the Membership of the Committee.  
 
 

28. URGENT BUSINESS 
 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 
 

29. DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP 
 
There were no declarations of Party Whip.  
 
 

30. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 
 

31. MINUTES OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
The Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 4 March 2016 were submitted. 
 
 
RESOLVED:  That the above Minutes be noted.  

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



LICENSING AND GAMBLING COMMITTEE            HELD: 5 APRIL 2016 
 

32. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED  That the minutes of the meeting held on the 2 February 2016 be 

received as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

33. LICENSING ACT 2003 - LATE NIGHT LEVY SCOPING EXERCISE 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Director of Leisure and Wellbeing as 
contained on pages 175 to 232 of the Book of Reports the purpose of which was to 
provide Members with information regarding a scoping exercise to determine the 
potential impact of the Late Night Levy within the Borough. 
 
RESOLVED  That the Late Night Levy be not adopted at this time. 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     ----------------------------------------- 

          - CHAIRMAN  - 

 

Page 4



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE                                       HELD:19 JULY 2016 
         Start: 10.30AM 
         Finish: 2.35PM 
 
PRESENT:  Councillor Delaney (Chairman) 
 
Councillors:  Devine 
   Kay 
 
Officers:  Principal Solicitor (Mrs K Lovelady) 
   Senior Licensing Officer (Mrs S Jordan) 
   Member Services/Civic Support Officer (Mrs J Brown) 
 
In attendance: Mr R Allison (Applicant) 
   Members of the public (Objectors) 
   Councillor Cotterill (Ward Councillor – Bickerstaffe 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

There were no apologies for absence received. 
 

2. MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
There were no changes to Membership of the Committee. 
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

4. DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP 
 
There were no declarations of Party Whip. 
 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

6. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED That the minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2016 be received 

as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

7. LICENSING HEARING PROCEDURE 
 
The Chairman outlined the Licensing Procedure. 
 

8. APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF WARBRECK GARDEN 
CENTRE, LYELAKE LANE, LATHOM, ORMSKIRK, L40 6JW 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Director of Leisure and Wellbeing as 
circulated and contained on pages 7 to 54 of the Book of Reports in respect of an 
application under the Licensing Act 2003 for a Premises Licence in respect of Warbreck 
Garden Centre, Lyelake Lane, lathom, Ormskirk, L40 6JW. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE                                       HELD:19 JULY 2016 
 
In considering the matter the Sub – Committee had regard to its Licensing Policy and 
the guidance issued under S. 182 of the Licensing Act.  It considered the relevant 
Licensing Objectives. 
 
The Applicant had previously offered forward conditions and amended timings following 
discussions with the Senior Environmental Health Officer.  Following the conclusion of 
the evidence the Applicant notified the Sub Committee that he wanted to reduce the 
operational hours and the time the outside space would be used.  The conditions offered 
by the Applicant have been reviewed by the Committee and additional conditions added 
in order to maintain the four licensing objectives.  As the intention of the Applicant was 
for licensable activities to cease at 23.00 hours, the application in respect of Late Night 
Refreshment has not been included. 
 
RESOLVED : The timings be granted as follows: 
 

A. That the premises shall be open to the public: 
 
Monday to Sunday 09.00 to 23.30 hours. 

 
B. That the sale/supply of alcohol shall be permitted on and off  
 the premises:- 
 

Monday to Sunday 09.00 to 23.00 hours. 
 

C. That the provision of live music and recorded music shall be 
permitted:- 
 
Sunday to Monday 09.00 hours to 23.00 hours 

 
Conditions  

D. That noise from music and associated sources (including 
D.J’s and amplified voices) shall not be clearly audible at the 
boundary of any residential premises sharing a boundary 
with the Premises, at any time regulated entertainment is 
taking place. 

 
E The Sale and Supply of Alcohol and all regulated 

entertainment being undertaken outside the premises shall 
cease after 20.00 hours. 

 
F That after 20.00 hours each day, customers will not be 

permitted to congregate in the outside seating area at any 
time other than for the purposes of smoking and this will be 
subject to regular checks by the management to ensure any 
persons smoking are not causing a disturbance to residents. 

 
G. That all external doors and windows shall be kept closed 

when regulated entertainment is being provided except in the 
event of an emergency or to allow access or egress. 

 
 

Page 6



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE                                       HELD:19 JULY 2016 
 
 

H. That the placing of refuse, such as bottles, into receptacles 
outside the premises shall not take place between 22.00 
hours and 08.00 hours on any day so as to prevent 
disturbance to nearby premises. 

 
I That the Licensee shall ensure that staff arriving early 

morning or departing late at night when the business has 
ceased trading conduct themselves in such a manner to 
avoid disturbance to nearby residents. 

 
J. Signage will be displayed asking customers to respect the  

needs of the local residents by leaving in a quiet and orderly 
manner. 

   
K  Customers waiting for taxis will be asked to remain inside the 

premises after 20.00 hours until the taxis arrive. 
 

 
This is the decision of the Licensing Sub – Committee. 
 
The Sub – Committee recommend that a residents meeting takes place to address any 
issues every six months. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        ---------------------------------------- 
                     - CHAIRMAN -  

 

Page 7





 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD: 21 SEPTEMBER 2016 
 Start: 2.30 pm 
 Finish: 4.00 pm 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor: N Delaney (Chairman)  
   
 
Councillors: Devine 

Mee  
 
 

 
   

 )Officers:              Environmental Protection & Community Safety Manager (Mr. A. Hill) 
   Principal Environmental Health Officer (Mrs. J. Antrobus) 

 Principal Solicitor (Mrs. K. Lovelady) 
   Senior Licensing Officer (Mrs. M. Murray) 
   Member Services/Civic Support Officer (Mrs. J.A. Ryan) 
 
 
In attendance:    Mr. C. White (Owner)  
 
 

9  APOLOGIES  
 
         There were no apologies for absence received.  
 

10   MEMBERSHIP OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE  
 

 There were no changes to the Membership of the Committee.  

 
11   URGENT BUSINESS 

 
 There were no urgent items of business.  

 
12   DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP  

 
 There were no declarations of Party Whip.  

 
13   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 There were no Declarations of Interest.  

 
14   MINUTES  

 
 RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on the 19 July 2016 be received 

as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

 
15   LICENSING HEARING PROCEDURE  

 
 The Chairman outlined the Licensing Procedure. 

 
 

 

Page 9



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE   HELD: 21 SEPTEMBER 2016 
 

 

16   APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE - THE LOFT, MOORGATE, 
ORMSKIRK  
 

 Consideration was given to the report of the Director of Leisure and Wellbeing as circulated 
and contained on pages 63 to 87 of the Book of Reports in respect of an application for a 
Temporary Event Notice (TEN) for The Loft, 13 Moorgate, Ormskirk, L39 4RT. 
 
In considering the matter the Sub-Committee had regard to its Licensing Policy and the 
guidance issued under S.182 of the Licensing Act.  It considered the relevant Licensing 
Objectives.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Temporary Event Notice (TEN) be granted subject to the conditions 

on the Statement of Conditions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     ……….……………………….. 

- CHAIRMAN  -  
 

Page 10



 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

HELD: Tuesday, 24 January 2017 
 

 Start: 10.30 am 
 Finish: 2.40 pm 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor: T Devine (Chairman)  
 
Councillors: J Kay 

M Mills 
 

 
Officers: Principal Solicitor (Mrs K Lovelady) 

Senior Licensing Officer (Mrs M Murray) 
Member Services/Civic Support Officer (Mrs J Brown) 
 

In attendance: Mr P Boschetto (Applicant) 
 Mr E Burroughs (Applicant) 
 PS T Bushell (Lancashire Police Constabulary) 
 PC M Ginn (Lancashire Police Constabulary) 
17   APOLOGIES  

 
 There were no apologies for absence received. 

 
18   MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE  

 
 There were no changes to Membership of the Committee. 

 
19   URGENT BUSINESS  

 
 There were no urgent items of business. 

 
20   DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP  

 
 There were no declarations of Party Whip. 

 
21   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 There were no declarations of interest. 

 
22   MINUTES  

 
 RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2016 be 

noted. 
 

23   LICENSING HEARING PROCEDURE  
 

 The Chairman outlined the Licensing Hearing Procedure. 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

HELD: Tuesday, 24 January 2017 
 

 

 

24   APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE VARIATION IN RESPECT OF JUNK 
BAR, 12 CHURCH STREET, ORMSKIRK, L39 3AN  
 

 Consideration was given to the report of the Director of Leisure and Wellbeing as 
contained on pages 139 to 164 of the Book of Reports in respect of an Application 
for a Premises Licence Variation in respect of Junk Bar, 12 Church Street, Ormskirk 
L39 3AN. 
 
In considering this matter the Sub- Committee had regard to its Licensing Policy and 
the guidance issued under S.182 of the Licensing Act.  It considered the relevant 
Licensing Objectives on this occasion was ‘the prevention of crime and disorder’. 
 
On hearing evidence from the Applicant and Lancashire Constabulary the Sub – 
Committee:- 
 
RESOLVED:             A. That the sale of alcohol shall be permitted between 10.00 

hours and 01.00 hours Sunday to Thursday and 10.00 
hours to 02.00 hours Friday and Saturday. 

 
B.  That the premises shall be open to the public between 

09.00 hours and 01.30 hours Sunday to Thursday and 
09.00 hours to 02.30 hours Friday and Saturday. 

 
C.   That the provision of films shall be permitted between 

10.00 hours and 01.00 hours Monday to Sunday. 
 

D. That the provision of recorded music shall be permitted 
between 10.00 hours and 01.30 hours Sunday to 
Thursday and 10.00 hours and 02.00 hours Friday and 
Saturday. 

 
Annex 3 will be amended as follows:- 

 
E. That the condition attached to Annex 3, stating that the 

operation of the premises be undertaken by a Dedicated 
Premises Supervisor with the minimum of 12 months 
experience in control of a Licensed Premises shall be 
removed.   
 

F. That all staff shall be trained in relation to the licensing 
objectives and that this shall be documented, this document 
shall remain on the premises at all times and made 
available to any responsible authority upon request.   
 

 
G. That on a Friday and Saturday or any other time the 

premises provides licensable activity until 02.00 hours or 
later there will be a minimum of 2 door supervisors on duty 

Page 12



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

HELD: Tuesday, 24 January 2017 
 

 

 

from 12.00 Midnight until the premises is closed to the 
public. 

 
H. That on any other trading night the provision of door 

supervisors will be on a risk assessment basis taking into 
account the nature and type of operation being conducted on 
that night.  The risk assessment will be documented, 
retained on the premises and produced for inspection upon 
the request of any responsible authority. 
 

The Sub – Committee added the following condition to Annex 3:- 
 

I. That the premises will operate an incident log, which shall 
be retained on the premises at all times and be made 
available for inspection to any responsible authority upon 
reasonable request. 
 

All other conditions at Annex 3 shall remain. 
 

The Applicant agreed to the addition of the following condition to 
Annex 2:- 
 
J. That the premises shall operate the radio link scheme 

whenever the premises are open to the public. 
 

 
 
 

……….……………………….. 
CHAIRMAN 

  

Page 13





 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

HELD: Friday, 10 February 2017 
 

 Start: 10.30 am 
 Finish: 12.05 pm 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor: N Delaney (Chairman)  
 
Councillors: T Devine J Kay 
 
In attendance: Mr R Arnott (Ward Hadaway Solicitors) 

Mr D Wood (Area Manager Co-op) 
Councillor Owens (Ward Councillor) 
 

 
Officers: Principal Solicitor (Mrs K Lovelady) 

Senior Licensing Officer (Mrs M Murray) 
Member Services/Civic Support Officer (Mrs J Brown) 
 
 

25   APOLOGIES  
 

 There were no apologies for absence received. 
 

26   MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE  
 

 There were no changes to Membership of the Sub – Committee. 
 

27   URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 There were no items of urgent business. 
 

28   DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP  
 

 There were no declarations of Party Whip. 
 

29   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 There were no declarations of Interest. 
 

30   MINUTES  
 

 RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2017 be 
noted. 

 
31   LICENSING HEARING PROCEDURE  

 
 The Chairman outlined the Licensing Hearing Procedure. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD: Friday, 10 February 2017 
 

 

 
32   APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF CO-OP (FORMER 

ROPERS ARMS SITE), 52 WIGAN ROAD, ORMSKIRK L39 2AU  
 

 Consideration was given to the report of the Director of Leisure and Wellbeing 
Services as contained on pages 205 to 224 of the Book of Reports in respect of an 
Application for a Premises Licence in respect of Co-op (former Ropers Arms Site), 
52 Wigan Road, Ormskirk L39 2AU. 
 
In considering this matter the Sub – Committee had regard to its Licensing Policy 
and the guidance issued under S. 182 of the Licensing Act.  It considered the 
relevant Licensing Objectives on this occasion was ‘the prevention of public 
nuisance’. 
 
On hearing evidence from the Applicant and Ward Councillor the Sub – Committee:-
  
 
RESOLVED:  A. That the sale of alcohol shall be permitted between 07.00 hours 

and 23.00 hours Monday to Saturday and 08.00 hours to 22.00 
hours Sundays and Bank Holidays. 

 
 B. That the premises shall be open to the public between 06.00 

hours and 23.00 hours Monday to Sunday.  
 

 
 
 

……….……………………….. 
Chairman 

 

Page 16



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

HELD: Wednesday, 24 May 2017 
 

 Start: 10.30 a.m. 
 Finish: 1.40 p.m.  
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor: T Devine (Chairman)  
   
 
Councillors: J Kay G Owen 
   
Officers: Principal Solicitor (Mrs k Lovelady) 

Senior Licensing Officer (Mrs M Murray) 
Member Services/Civic Support Officer (Mrs J A Ryan) 
 

  
In attendance:          Mr P Boschetto – Premises Licence Holder 

Mr E Burroughs – Premises Licence Holder 
Sergeant S Ashcroft – Lancashire Constabulary 
PC M Ginn – Lancashire Constabulary 
PC J Stewart – Lancashire Constabulary

1   APOLOGIES  
 

 There were no apologies for absence received. 
 

2   URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 There were no items of urgent business. 
 

3   DECLARATIONS OF PARTY WHIP  
 

 There were no declarations of Party Whip. 
 

4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5   MINUTES  
 

 RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2017 be noted. 
 

6   LICENSING HEARING PROCEDURE  
 

 The Chairman outlined the Licensing Hearing Procedure. 
 

7   APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF 
JUNK, 12 CHURCH STREET, ORMSKIRK, L39 3AN  

  
Consideration was given to the report of the Director of Leisure and Wellbeing 
Services as contained on pages 7 to 58 of the Book of Reports in respect of an 
Application for the review of a Premises Licence in respect of Junk, 12 Church 
Street, Ormskirk, L39 3AN. 

Page 17



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD: Wednesday, 24 May 2017 
 

 

 
In considering this matter the Sub-Committee had regard to its Licensing Policy and 
the guidance issued under S. 182 of the Licensing Act.  It considered the relevant 
Licensing Objectives on this occasion was the 'Prevention of Crime and Disorder'. 
 
On hearing evidence from the Premises Licence Holders and Lancashire 
Constabulary the Sub – Committee:- 
 
RESOLVED:   A. That the current DPS be removed. 
 

The operating hours will be as follows:- 
 

B. That the sale of alcohol shall be permitted between 10.00 hours 
and 01.00 hours Sunday to Thursday and 10.00 hours to 01.30 
hours Friday and Saturday.  
 

C. That the premises shall be open to the public between 09.00 hours 
and 01.30 hours Sunday to Thursday and 09.00 hours to 02.00 
hours Friday and Saturday. 

 
D. That the provision of films shall be permitted between 10.00 hours 

and 01.00 hours Monday to Sunday.  
 

E. That the provision of recorded music shall be permitted between 
10.00 hours and 01.00 hours Sunday to Thursday and 10.00 hours 
and 01.30 hours Friday and Saturday.  

 
The duplicated conditions contained within Annex 2 are removed and Annex 3 will 
be amended and modified as follows:- 
 

F. That the premises shall install, maintain and operate a CCTV 
system which will be in use during all times the premises is 
open to the public and will comply with the following 
requirements; 

I. The system will cover all internal public areas of the premises 
and any external areas used by customers of the premises. 

II. The system will cover all entrances and exits and be capable of 
capturing a head and shoulders image of all persons entering 
the premises. 

III. The system will display the correct time and date and will be 
capable of time and date stamping any downloaded footage. 

IV. The system will be capable of retaining recorded images for a 
minimum of 28 days. 

V. At all times the premises is open to the public there will be a 
member of staff at the premises who can operate the system 
and provide any footage requested. 

VI. The Data Controller will provide footage from the system, in a 
playable format, to any responsible authority on reasonable 
request and where that request complies with the Data 
Protection Act or equivalent legislation. 

Page 18



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD: Wednesday, 24 May 2017 
 

 

VII. Any requested footage will be provided as soon as practicable 
and in any event within 72 hours. 

VIII. The premises will prominently display signage informing 
customers that CCTV is in operation at the premises. 

 
 

G. That on any day that the premises is authorised by the premises 
licence to provide licensable activity until 01.30 hours or later 
the provision of door supervisors will be on a risk assessed 
basis taking into account the nature and type of operation being 
conducted on that night.  

 
H. That the above risk assessment will be documented, retained 

on the premises and produced for inspection to any responsible 
authority upon request. 

 
I. That Notices will be displayed at public exits, in a clear 

prominent position, requesting that patrons respect the needs of 
local residents and leave the premises and area quietly. 

 
J. That whenever regulated entertainment is taking place, regular 

assessments shall be made of any noise emanating from the 
premises.  Wherever said assessments indicate that noise is 
likely to cause nuisance to any local residents, remedial steps 
shall be taken to reduce the levels of noise. 

 
K. That the premises will operate a 'Challenge 25' policy whereby 

any persons who appears to be under the age of 25 shall be 
required to provide identification to prove that they are over 18.  
The acceptable forms of proof of identification shall be either:- 
 
i. Passport 
ii. A UK Photocard Driving Licence 
iii. Official ID card issued by HM Forces or EU bearing a 

photograph and the date of birth of the holder 
iv. Proof of age card accredited under the Proof of Age 

Standards Scheme (PASS) 
 

L. That all staff involved in the sale of alcohol will be trained in relation 
to the 'Challenge 25' policy, age related sales and the licensing 
objectives upon commencement of their employment.  Staff will be 
subject to refresher training at regular intervals, this training will be 
documented and made available for inspection on request by any 
Responsible Authority. 

 
M. That the Premises Licence Holder/DPS will prevent customers 

taking glasses and bottles outside the premises after 21.00 hrs 
after which drinks will be provided in either plastic/polycarbonate 
containers. 

 

Page 19



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD: Wednesday, 24 May 2017 
 

 

N. That a bound incident book shall be maintained at the premises 
which will be used to record the following; 

i. Any challenges, both positive and negative, made to customers 
relating to the sale of age restricted products 

ii. The time, date of the challenge, description and or name of the 
customer and details of identification produced 

iii. Any incidents relating to the premises, its staff or customers 
iv. This record will include the time, date, nature and outcome of 

the incident 
 

O. That the incident book will be made available for inspection by any 
responsible authority on reasonable request  

 
P. That the premises will operate a 'shopwatch' radio (or other 

compatible radio) and be part of the Ormskirk Town Centre Radio 
Link Scheme.  The radio will be operated at all times the premises 
is open to the public in accordance with the Radio Link Scheme 
Protocols, which include the requirement to book on and off with 
Ormskirk CCTV Operators. 

 
Q. That the premises will be permitted to provide its authorised 

licensable activities for an additional hour on the following days:- 
 

i. The last Friday before Christmas Eve 
ii. Christmas Day 
iii. Any Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Mondays of Bank Holiday 

Weekends 
iv. From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start 

of the permitted hours on New Years Day 
 

 
 
 

……….……………………….. 
- CHAIRMAN  - 

 

Page 20



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

HELD: Tuesday, 6 June 2017 
 

 Start: 11.03am 
 Finish:   2.45pm 
   
PRESENT:         Councillor Delaney (Chairman) 
   
Councillors J Kay M Mills 

 
Officers: Principal Solicitor (Mrs K Lovelady) 

Senior Licensing Officer (Mrs M Murray) 
Environmental Protection and Community Safety Manager  
(Mr A Hill) 
Principal Environmental Health Officer (Ms J Antrobus) 
Senior Environmental Health Officer (Mr C Carpenter) 
Senior Environmental Health Officer (Ms G Perkins) 
Member Services/Civic Support Officer (Mrs J Brown) 
 

In attendance:        Premises Licence Holder (Mr S Patel)  
          Premises Licence Holder (Mr D Kenyon) 
          Poppleston Allen Solicitors (Mr J Smith) 
          DPS (Mr D Webster) 
          Members of public (against the Review Application) 
1   APOLOGIES  

 
 There were no apologies for absence received. 

 
(Note: The Licensing Sub – Committee and attendees observed one minutes silence 
in respect of the recent London attack that occurred at the weekend). 
 

2   MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE  
 

 In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4, the Sub Committee noted the 
termination of membership of Councillor Devine, and the appointment of Councillor 
Mills for this meeting only, thereby giving effect to the wishes of the political groups. 
 

3   URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 There were no items of urgent business. 
 

4   DECLARATIONS OF PARTY WHIP  
 

 There were no declarations of Party Whip. 
 

5   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

6   LICENSING HEARING PROCEDURE  
 

 The Chairman referred to the Licensing Hearing Procedure. 
 

Page 21



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD: Tuesday, 6 June 2017 
 

 

7   APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF 
JYNX, WITHAM ROAD, SKELMERSDALE, WN8 8HP  
 

 Consideration was given to the report of the Director of Leisure and Wellbeing as 
contained on pages 63 to 147 of the Book of Reports in respect of an Application for 
the review of a Premises License in respect of Jynx, Witham Road, Skelmersdale, 
WN8 8HP. 
 
In considering this matter the Sub – Committee had regard to the Licensing Act 
2003, its Licensing Policy and the guidance issued under S 182 of the Licensing Act.  
It considered the relevant Licensing Objectives on this occasion was the 'Prevention 
of Public Nuisance'. 
 
On hearing evidence from the Premises Licence Holders, Environmental Health 
Services, supporters and objectors the Sub Committee decided to impose the 
following additional conditions to the Premises Licence; 
  
RESOLVED:    A. That in line with the Authority's Statement of Licensing Policy 

the Sub Committee has issued a yellow card warning which 
will remain on the licence for a period of 2 years.  The 
decision of the Sub Committee will be displayed in a 
prominent position on the premises where it can be 
conveniently read from the exterior of the premises detailing 
the outcome of the review and the warning that has been 
given. 

 
B. That the Premises Licence Holder will modify the smoking 

shelter to the front of the premises as soon as possible and 
no later than 31 October 2017, in accordance with the 
recommendations made in the "assessment of noise from a 
smoking shelter" report dated 31 May 2017, report No: 
101522-3, prepared by Miller Goodall Environmental 
Services, and attached to the Premises Licence.  The 
maximum number of customers permitted in the smoking 
shelter at any one time will be 15. 

 
C. That the Premises Licence Holder will adopt and fully comply 

with the noise Management Plan, dated 31 May 2017, report 
No:101522-2. Prepared by Miller Goodall Environmental 
Services, and attached to the Premises Licence. 

 
 
 
 
       ……….……………………….. 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 22



 
 

 
LICENSING & GAMBLING 
COMMITTEE: 10 October 2017 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Report of: Director of Leisure and Wellbeing 
 
Contact for further information: Paul Charlson (ext 5246)  
    (E-mail: paul.charlson@westlancs.gov.uk)  
 

 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF REVISED SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENSING POLICY  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Wards affected: Borough wide  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To approve a revised Statement of Sex Establishment Licensing Policy. 
 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS TO LICENSING AND GAMBLING COMMITTEE 
 
2.1 That the Statement of Sex Establishment Licensing Policy attached at Appendix 

3 to this report is approved for publication on 11 January 2018 and to take effect 
from 11 February 2018. 
 
 

3.0 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The power to approve, adopt and publish a Statement of Sex Establishment 

Licensing Policy (the Policy) is contained in the functions of the Licensing and 
Gambling Committee (the Committee).  

 
3.2 Councillors will be aware that the licensing regime for Sex Establishments is 

contained in the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (the 
1982 Act), as amended by Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 (the 
2009 Act). Whilst the amendment of the 1982 Act created a national licensing 
scheme for Sex Establishments, this may cause concern to the residents and 
businesses in the Borough. Notwithstanding individual morality, many may take 
the view that the presence of such premises damages the character of an area, 
prevents further commercial potential or could lead to exploitation and 
reinforcement of damaging stereotypes.  

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



3.3 The role of the Council as Licensing Authority is not to take a moral stance, but to 
assess these arguments in a local context, while aiming to ensure regulatory 
balance. Parliament has made it lawful to operate a Sex Establishment and 
therefore such businesses are a legitimate part of the retail and leisure industries.  

 
3.4 In contrast to other licensing legislation, the provisions of the 1982 Act are not 

mandatory, and therefore, the Council is not under an obligation to publish a 
policy for Sex Establishment licensing. However, the Council has previously 
taken the stance that it wanted to ensure that it was legislatively equipped to 
address the needs of the community. Accordingly, the Council has long since 
adopted Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act (as amended by Section 27 of the 2009 Act), 
and also passed a resolution to determine and licence Sexual Entertainment 
Venues. This resolution was passed on the 21st July 2010 and came into force on 
the 1st November 2010 to ensure the Council was in a position to operate a 
documented licensing regime [following a legislative transitional period] for all 
such establishments from 21 July 2011. 

 
3.5  Furthermore, by publishing the Policy, the Council can clearly state its objectives 

and the needs of the Borough. The Policy also allows the Council to dictate 
where, and to what extent, Sex Establishments may be permitted, through a 
clearly explained licensing process. Accordingly, Councillors previously took the 
view that the number of permissible Sex Establishments in the Borough should 
be set to zero. [Although it should be noted that the Council cannot reject any 
legitimate application without first considering it – even if it breaches these limits].  

 
3.6 The current version of the Policy was approved for use from 11 February 2013 

and remains in effect for five years. This report is presented to the Committee so 
that a revised version of the Policy can be approved for use from 11 February 
2018. 

 
 
4.0 CURRENT POSITION 
 
4.1 Under existing delegated authority to the Director of Leisure and Wellbeing, a 

draft Statement of Sex Establishment Licensing Policy was prepared, published 
and subject to public consultation from 31 July 2017 to 29 September 2017. The 
responses to the consultation are provided in Appendix 2 attached to this report. 
All of the responses express an opinion that supports the proposed number of 
permissible Sex Establishments in the Borough remaining at zero. Accordingly, 
no amendments are therefore proposed to the Policy which is attached at 
Appendix 3 to this report.    

   
 
5.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS/COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 
5.1 This legislation has the potential to impact upon the Community Strategy. The 

contents of the report has the following links with the Community Strategy: 
Community Safety (issues A and E); Economy and Employment (issue D). 

 
 
6.0 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The contents of this report can be delivered within existing resources. 

Page 24



 
 
7.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 As stated above, the Council is not under a legal obligation to publish the Policy. 

However, it is appropriate to do so to provide clear guidance on the Council’s 
requirements. If the Policy were not adopted, the Council would still be required 
to determine legitimate applications, but its requirements would be ambiguous. 
This could lead to a lack of uniformity in decisions and potential increases in 
appeals against Council decisions. 

 
 
8.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 
8.1 By publishing the Policy, the Council can clearly state the needs of the Borough 

and dictate where, and to what extent, Sex Establishments may be permitted. 
The Council can also set out controls and/or conditions on licensed operations. 
This will allow the Council to provide the means by which the arguments of 
commercial and individual freedom can be balanced against the protection of the 
character of the Borough and the sensibilities of those who live and work in West 
Lancashire. 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Documents 
The following background documents (as defined in Section 100D (5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing this Report. 
 
None. 
 
Equality Impact Assessment 
There is a significant direct impact on Councillors of the public, employees, elected 
Councillors and / or stakeholders.  Therefore an Equality Impact Assessment is required 
A formal equality impact assessment is attached as an Appendix to this report, the 
results of which have been taken into account in the Recommendations contained within 
this report. 
 
Appendices 
 
1 Equality Impact Assessment 
2 Consultation responses 
3 Statement of Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 2018 
 
 

Page 25





Appendix 1 
 

Equality Impact Assessment Form  

Directorate:  Leisure and Wellbeing Service:  Licensing 

Completed by:  Paul Charlson Date: 28/09/17 

Subject Title: APPROVAL OF REVISED SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENSING POLICY 

1. DESCRIPTION 

Is a policy or strategy being produced or revised: *delete as appropriate 
Yes 

Is a service being designed, redesigned or cutback:  
No 

Is a commissioning plan or contract specification 
being developed: 

 
No 

Is a budget being set or funding allocated: No 

Is a programme or project being planned: No 

Are recommendations being presented to senior 
managers and/or Councillors: 

 
Yes 

Does the activity contribute to meeting our duties 
under the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector 
Equality Duty (Eliminating unlawful 
discrimination/harassment, advancing equality 
of opportunity, fostering good relations): 

 
 
No 

Details of the matter under consideration:   
 
 
 

If you answered Yes to any of the above go straight to Section 3  
If you answered No to all the above please complete Section 2  

2. RELEVANCE 

Does the work being carried out impact on service 
users, staff or Councillors (stakeholders): 

 *delete as appropriate 
No 

If Yes, provide details of how this impacts on service 
users, staff or Councillors (stakeholders): 
If you answered Yes go to Section 3 

 
 
 
 

If you answered No to both Sections 1and 2 provide 
details of why there is no impact on these three 
groups: 
You do not need to complete the rest of this form. 

 

3. EVIDENCE COLLECTION 

Who does the work being carried out impact on, i.e. 
who is/are the stakeholder(s)? 

Public and businesses.  
 

If the work being carried out relates to a universal 
service, who needs or uses it most? (Is there any 
particular group affected more than others)?  
 
 

Public and businesses. 
 
 
 

Which of the protected characteristics are most 
relevant to the work being carried out? 

 

 
*delete as appropriate 

Page 27



Age No 
Gender Yes 
Disability No 
Race and Culture No 
Sexual Orientation Yes 
Religion or Belief Yes 
Gender Reassignment No 

Marriage and Civil Partnership No 
Pregnancy and Maternity No 

4. DATA ANALYSIS 

In relation to the work being carried out, and the 
service/function in question, who is actually or 
currently using the service and why? 

No such businesses are currently licensed and 
the Policy proposes keeping existing zero limit 
for such premises. 
 
 

What will the impact of the work being carried out be 
on usage/the stakeholders? 

Updated Policy on sex establishments. 
 
 

What are people’s views about the services?  Are 
some customers more satisfied than others, and if 
so what are the reasons?  Can these be affected by 
the proposals? 

Responses to public consultation are contained 
in this report.  
 
 
 

What sources of data including consultation results 
have you used to analyse the impact of the work 
being carried out on users/stakeholders with 
protected characteristics? 

Public consultation – Policy available on the 
website and notices placed in the press.  
 

If any further data/consultation is needed and is to 
be gathered, please specify:  

None. 

5. IMPACT OF DECISIONS 

In what way will the changes impact on people with 
particular protected characteristics (either positively 
or negatively or in terms of disproportionate 
impact)? 

None. 

6. CONSIDERING THE IMPACT 

If there is a negative impact what action can be 
taken to mitigate it? (If it is not possible or desirable 
to take actions to reduce the impact, explain why 
this is the case (e.g. legislative or financial drivers 
etc.). 

 
N/A 
 
 
 

What actions do you plan to take to address any 
other issues above?  

No actions 
 
 
If no actions are planned state no actions 

7. MONITORING AND REVIEWING 

When will this assessment be reviewed and who will 
review it? 

Policy remains in place for 5 years. It will be 
formally reviewed then and at any time during 
this period if needed.  

 

Page 28



Appendix 2 
Consultation responses 
 
No. Respondent location Type of 

respondent 
Respondent comments 

1 Ormskirk Public My view is no thank you. Ormskirk has already been destroyed through the increase in student population due 
to the university being allowed to grow too large for the town. We have too many student houses which has 
created major problems for residents. Sex shops would definitely be a disaster for the town. My vote is No. 
Please record this. 

2 Ormskirk Public I am replying to the above consultation . I strongly oppose any sex establishments in Ormskirk . Ormskirk is 
working hard to make itself a vibrant centre that wants to attract visitors  , but I hardly think ' sex establishments  
' will promote Ormskirk Historic Market Town in the right direction . It would  attract the wrong clientele which 
will do nothing to support the markets and shops . I believe if this were allowed it would drag Ormskirk down to ' 
sex in the city ' or should I say 'sex in an Historic Market Town ' . We don't need ' seedy establishments ' . We 
need to promote the best in Ormskirk . I totally object to sex establishments in Ormskirk . 

3 Aughton Public As a resident of West Lancashire, my comment on the policy consultation is that sections 8.3 and 8.4 should in 
no way be weakened or loosened, as this would be detrimental to the character of the area, residents' 
enjoyment and attractiveness to businesses within the Borough. 

4 Ormskirk Public I am appalled at the possibility of sex shops , sex cinemas and lap dancing bars coming to our borough , I don't 
think our young people need to see it locally and I am concerned about the type of people it will attract to the 
area. I agree we need a cinema but let's have one for everyone to use and enjoy not just one for a certain few . 
Teenagers will be bound to try their luck getting in and I think we could use any facilities for a much better 
purpose. 

5 Bickerstaffe Parish Council Parish 
Council 

In response and after discussion about this consultation, Bickerstaffe Parish Council would like to support 
WLBC in that it believes a “No Sex Establishments Policy” for West Lancs should be upheld. 

6 Ormskirk Public I am writing to comment on the draft Sex Establishment Licensing Policy for West Lancashire. I am broadly in 
agreement with the draft policy, which appears to be much the same as the current version.   
In particular, I strongly support the provisions of para 8.3 in limiting the number of establishments in the 
Borough to zero.  It is difficult to see how the licensing of such an establishment could do other than be of 
detriment to “the character of the locality where they are situated” (para 8.2(2)(i). 

7 Ormskirk Public We were concerned to read the above article.  However we think it may be journalistic sensationalism  but we 
do think that we need to make our feelings known that any application for this kind of business in Ormskirk 
would be totally inappropriate for the historical character of Ormskirk, and that if any are proposed in the future 
the council would let the public know of the application so that people's feelings could be known.  This kind of 
business can be found in cities but NOT in Ormskirk. 

8 Ormskirk Public I understand that West Lancashire is currently reviewing its policy for the licensing of sex establishments in 
Ormskirk. I would like to express my concern about the possibility of such establishments being allowed in 
Ormskirk and wish to oppose that happening. Ormskirk is a family and student town and such establishments 
would not be acceptable. I hope that West Lancashire council will not allow sex shops or the like to be licensed 

P
age 29



in Ormskirk now or in the future 

9 Ormskirk Public I understand that the Council is currently consulting the public on a review of its policy for the licensing of sex 
establishments. As a Council Tax payer of West Lancashire I wish to make known to the council that I support 
the Council's current policy of zero such establishments. Ormskirk is a market town which attracts large 
numbers of visitors, families including young children, and I think that it would be wholly inappropriate to have 
sex shops in the town,  where they would be  on view.  I believe that such establishments would have a 
deleterious effect on Ormskirk being seen as a traditional market town and would mar the reputation of the 
town.  I would not take children to such a town. 

10 Ormskirk Public I think any changes to allow licensing of such establishments to be wholly inappropriate and incompatible with 
the image of a market town the council is promoting. I believe this would attract clientele and behaviour which 
would threaten the peace of the town and discourage people who enjoy the current nightlife. There are already 
enough bars and gambling establishments without adding further vices and which could be harmful to the large 
young student population. 

11 Ormskirk Public I am writing to raise my concerns regarding the possibility of the opening of sex shops etc within the West 
Lancs Borough. I believe that they would have a detrimental effect on the children and young adults in our 
area. They would damage the character of the Borough and would lead to a decline in the desire for other 
potential business's in the area. 

12 Ormskirk Public I am writing to ask you to retain the Council's policy of a zero limit on sex establishments. I do not wish to see 
the empty shops in Ormskirk being used by sex establishments.  This would have a detrimental effect on young 
children and young adults, many of whom are students, and damage the character of the town and Borough. 

13 Ormskirk Public The thought of parents and children being subjected to these establishments on the high street is really 
abhorrent.  If they are to be licensed at all (which I disagree with) they should be away from the town centre 
and not blatently advertised. 

14 Ormskirk Public I understand that WLDC is seeking to establish the need (!) and/or likelyhood of opening sex shops in the area. 
I cannot see any need for such establishments and would object strongly if one was considering opening. 

15 Ormskirk Public My name is XXXX, I am 22years old and have lived in Ormskirk all my life. I have seen the town grow from a 
full and bustling, quaint little town to its current 'university town' state with many empty shop units and 
businesses aimed prodominately at students, such as Dominoes pizza and several bookmakers. I have worked 
in the local community, parish and Scout Organisation for a number of years and am passionate about keeping 
the town and community alive. Although there are a great deal of students, Ormskirk is still also home to many 
elderly people, children and families, with around 8 schools in the local area and a large parish community from 
around 5 different churches. I believe the prospect of opening sex shops, and other sex establishments, in 
Ormskirk would damage the town's reputation massively and only amuse a tiny percentage of the population. 
Not only would the town become tacky and run down, I feel it would become inappropriate and inconsiderate, 
leading to many visitors not wishing to visit anymore, having a real impact on the rest of Ormskirk and its many 
independent businesses. Not to mention the negative influences they could have on the younger generations of 
today. There are certain things a child should not see and, especially in today's society, it seems many children 
are growing up far quicker than perhaps they should. Seeing a sex establishment on the high street may create 
a sense of normality among a much too young age group and I believe many parents would be shocked to see 
these establishments in such a respectable town. There are many empty shop units to be filled but Ormskirk 

P
age 30



needs more family orientated shops and businesses like a cinema or other entertainment, to be enjoyed by  
families, students and the elderly alike. I hope this letter sees you well and that my opinion can be taken into 
account when further planning takes place. I would be more than happy to help wherever I can. 

16 Ormskirk Public I note with some concern that the current zero tolerance policy is open to review. Whilst realising that Ormskirk 
Town Centre is in need of revitilisation, that we need new businesses to fill empty premises, and that there is a 
need to attract visitors (and their spending money) to the town, but surely we do not need to indulge in this level 
of 'barrel scraping'. You should consider how sex 'industry' businesses might dissuade others from setting up in 
the town centre, and indeed how any approval of such business might persuade existing businesses to move 
elsewhere. Perhaps you wish the town centre altered to fill empty premises at any cost so that you can recoup 
the council tax deficit resulting from your policy of allowing other premises to convert to council tax free student 
accommodation. Indeed resulting fall in property values may decrease your income altogether. Other causes 
for concern would be 1. Should our young people be subjected to open sale of the sex industry as they travel 
past these premises on their way to/from schools, and 2. are the dubious characters attracted by the sex 
business the visitors with whom we should like to share our town. 

17 Ormskirk Public I'm writing as part of the consultation on WLBC's Sex Establishment Policy. I fully support a policy of Zero such 
establishments throughout the Borough in general and in my own town of Ormskirk in particular. This is not an 
area of large cities - we still advertise Ormskirk as a market town, the image of which would not benefit from 
such establishments (or even one such) setting up in the town. Also, any such establishments would have a 
detrimental effect on the judgements and opinions of children and young people - and we know there are many 
and varied educational establishments in the Borough - why would we want our children and young people 
walking past any such establishment and, maybe, start to think that all relationships should follow the pattern 
as advertised and practiced by these establishments? Also, why waste potential retail space on such 
establishments? However much effort is needed to increase retail occupancy, licensing such establishments is 
not the answer. 

18 Ormskirk Public It has been brought to my attention that the council is considering relaxing its policy of allowing sex 
establishments in West Lancashire. I must admit that I am appalled. Such a reversal would be detrimental to 
the environment that my children are being raised in. It would also increase the likelihood that they could be put 
into serious danger from the predators that visit such establishments. Many of the other residents that I have 
spoken to on Ludlow Drive in Ormskirk agree that this can only detract from the wholesome atmosphere that is 
common throughout West Lancashire. I, therefore, respectfully, request that you vote against such a measure. 

19 Ormskirk Public I fully support a policy of excluding establishments of this nature from West Lancashire. 

20 Aughton Public We would like to voice our concern that the Council is considering reviewing it's policy regarding the licensing 
of sex establishments in Ormskirk we would not like to see the current zero policy altered 

21 Ormskirk Public My understanding of the Council Policy is that it will stay at Zero which is great news. I think any change to this 
would be very detrimental to the character of the Borough and especially Ormskirk town with its historical 
heritage. In addition I do not think such establishments would help businesses to move into Ormskirk or the 
Borough as I believe most businesses would be put off by being associated with such establishments nearby. I 
would also be fearful of any change and its impact on the many school children who come into and through the 
town centre particularly of an evening on their way home from their schools. A change in policy would also run 
the risk of exploiting and reinforcing damaging stereotypes which seem to exist in some aspects of our society. 

P
age 31



So I would encourage the Council not to change its current policy. 

22 Ormskirk Public I wish to object to the opening of any sex shops or similar in Ormskirk. I feel that this is the 'thin end of the 
wedge' and totally detrimental to the residents of Ormskirk. If one were to be allowed, this would then open the 
door for others to follow and would result in attracting an  undesirable element resulting in driving even more 
families away from Ormskirk. Despite the increasing number of empty shops, surely there is another way to see 
them providing a more rounded and family friendly service to the locals. 

23 Ormskirk Public Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Borough‟s revised policy on sex establishments. I would 
strongly support the current policy that no sex establishment should be licensed. I note that the Council 
considers that these establishments would be unsuitable in areas : Which are residential, or predominantly 
residential, in nature;   which are historically important; where premises in the vicinity are used for places of 
religious worship; where premises in the vicinity are used for schools, children‟s nurseries, youth clubs, 
children‟s centres or similar establishments which children under 18 years of age may reasonably be expected 
to attend; where premises in the vicinity are used for community facilities including, but not limited to, swimming 
pools, leisure centres, public parks, sheltered housing and accommodation for vulnerable people. I am only 
familiar with Ormskirk, Aughton and Burscough but all three of these areas are residential, have schools, 
nurseries, churches and parks and leisure facilities which are well used by young people. There are many 
empty shops in Ormskirk and it is worrying to think that they may be turned into sex establishments, which 
would change the character of the town in a deleterious way. I strongly support the Council in its consideration 
that there should be no sex establishments in West Lancashire. 

24 Ormskirk Public I feel I would like to comment on the possibility of Ormskirk allowing " SEX Shops" because that is what they 
are . Ormskirk is a small market town and like all other towns it has a share of vacant shops . if permission was 
given then I would suggest that the owners of these vacant shops would be quite happy for the monetary 
rewards just like the owners of the properties which have been used for student accommodation. The Council 
has said that it would not allow such shops near schools, places of worship,childrens nurseries, youth clubs. 
swimming and leisure facilities , public parks . I am not sure how far from the aforementioned it would  need to 
be ; because the Ormskirk  town is not large enough to be away from all these places . Ormskirk should try and 
attract family orientated shops not those that need to be secreted  away from the general public. I feel if people 
have a need and a desire to frequent such establishments then they should go to larger towns which  may be 
able to house them away not small family towns such as Ormskirk . 

25 Ormskirk Public I write to express my concerns in the event that the council's current policy on the provision of licenses to sex 
establishments changed, in favour of allowing one or more of such premises in or around the town. Being a 
father to 3 girls, all at schools in the locality, having an elderly mother and an elderly father in law in the town 
and having been a resident of the town for nearly 50 years, I feel I have had and continue to have a good 
understanding of the character and needs of the town and its people. Ormskirk is a small market town with 
deep historical and cultural roots and a parochial but family nature. It also has an aspirational outlook to 
improve itself and the community it contains (many of whom cultivate their own aspirations for the quality of the 
town they live in and its house prices!) and values the security and feeling of security of its residents. Ormskirk 
is the historical and shopping hub of the surrounding area and has a considerable throughput of very young 
and very old people through its connections with schools and elderly people living and shopping in the town.   
Given the small size of Ormskirk and the homely and provincial feel of the town centre and it's shopping, dining 

P
age 32



and drinking establishments  it appears to me that it would take very little for the arrival of even one sex 
establishment, of any nature whatsoever, to be a stand out feature and constitute an unjustifiable and utterly 
inappropriate image of the town and one which would draw people from outside the area with no interest in any 
aspect of the town save for the sex trade, to the detriment of the shops and dining establishments in the town 
centre, the ambience of the town centre and the physical and perceived safety and comfort of children, women, 
families and the elderly, for little if any financial reward (save perhaps for lining the pockets of those running 
sex establishments themselves) given there is little crossover between a sex establishment and the general 
interests of the town or its people.  The small town centre and its proximity to the numerous primary schools, 
the park and Park Pool leisure complex, the woods and both sheltered accommodation and family housing, 
once again, mean that the introduction of a sex establishment would reflect adversely on the actual and 
perceived comfort and safety of residents and visitors.  There have, of course, been isolated incidents of sexual 
assault in Ormskirk in the past ,with concern spread in the local media as a result of this.  The introduction of a 
sex establishment would do nothing to ameliorate the possibility of sexual predators coming to the area and 
would, on the contrary, provide an invitation to them as well as potential absolution for misdemeanours owing 
to their perceived view of the character of the town and its inhabitants. It also appears to me that the 
introduction of a sex establishment would appear even more of a branding of the town given the empty 
premises in the town centre. This could have the adverse effect of dissuading students (who now appear to be 
the lifeblood of the area) from coming to the town or mainstream or prestige establishments from setting up in 
this area rather than, for instance, Southport. I also bear in mind the considerable criticism that the presence of 
Edge Hill students and the alleged actions of some students brings out in the local press. It seems to me that 
people (who I am sure would largely be from outside the town and its environs) who have no interest in the 
town, save for the the tunnel vision of a night of personal gratification in a sex establishment (and who, unlike 
university students, may not be subject to the concern of damaging the professional career that they are 
studying for by inappropriate action) are likely to be rather more of a concern for the town than the high spirits 
of a few freshers. Many thanks for your kind consideration of the contents of this email. Please may I have an 
acknowledgement of receipt. 

26 Ormskirk Public I wish to register a strong objection to this proposal on the following grounds: 
1. None of the examples listed in the Champion report 20 September, page 3, accords with the image of 
Ormskirk that has been presented in such slogans as 'Ormskirk: A Historic Market Town'.   
2. There has been a significant change in the profile of the Ormskirk town centre as it is.  Some of these have 
arguably been detrimental, with the traditional retail outlets giving way to bars, restaurants, betting shops, 
churches shops, with increasingly high rentals driving out local retailers.  The addition of sex shops will 
complete the change of Ormskirk from a market town into some kind of raffish entertainment centre, a poor 
man's Las Vegas. 
3. 'Pole dancing, table dancing, strip shows' do little but titivate voyeurs and certainly demean women.  There is 
little room for this sort of thing in a society that is attempting to create a much-needed equality between sexes 
in daily life. 
4. Equally there is no place for these in a university town.  I know as a former lecturer at Edge Hill that students 
are considered adult at the age of 18, but many are not sufficiently mature to deal with this kind of temptation 
when they first arrive.  We have a duty of care to young people who come here to study, and giving licences to 

P
age 33



sex shops is no way to exercise this. 

27 Ormskirk Public I don't want this kind of business in Ormskirk. The town is bad enough anyway... lap dancing places and sex 
cinemas will turn Ormskirk into a disreputable dive. I would like the footpaths cleared though, so that my friends 
and I can enjoy the more wholesome pleasures of the country-side. Anyway, this is a market town; it's not Port 
Said... a normal cinema would be good. 

28 Ormskirk Public My husband and I strongly object to shops turning into sex shops.  This will make the town centre appear 
seedy and I know many will stop using the town centre, but continue to use Morrisons and Aldi only.  
Surely you are not that desperate for money that you need to resort to opening sex shops!  This will have 
detrimental effects on children and young adults, damage to the character of the Borough, exploitation and 
reinforcing of damaging stereotypes.  This can also prevent further commercial potential in the area. I hope this 
email is taken seriously and added to the many emails/letters that oppose to opening of sex shops. 

29 Ormskirk Public I would like to register my objection to the thought of this type of shop in Ormskirk as I don't think it will benefit 
the town or surrounding area in any way I think it would only bring the ambiance of Ormskirk down to a darker 
side of life one were you don't want your children and grandchildren being part of  thank you for reading this 
email  a local resident 

30 Ormskirk Public I wish to voice my concerns and opposition to the licensing of any sex establishments opening in this market 
town of Ormskirk, which could have detrimental effects on children and young adults. Would damage the 
character of the town and could cause exploitation of young people. 

31 Ormskirk Public OBJECTION TO ANY CHANGE IN THE EXISTING ZERO POLICY CONCERNING APPLICATIONS FOR SEX 
ESTABLISHMENTS WITHIN WEST LANCASHIRE. 
Our reasons for the objections are 1) The character and location of such premises and their use would be 
totally out of keeping not only in Ormskirk but also in many of the villages and towns which come under the 
umbrella of West Lancs. Borough Council. Ormskirk particularly is well used by local families going about their 
daily business. There is also a large number of children throughout the Borough travelling to and from local 
schools, as well as the large student population that attend Edge Hill University. We ask that you carefully 
consider what may be suggested and come to the conclusion that sticking to your existing Zero Policy would be 
in the best interests of all West Lancashire Borough residents. 

32 Ormskirk Public As a Christian, I would just like to put it on record my opposition to the proposed opening of 'sex and lap 
dancing' shops in Ormskirk, as mentioned in an article on page 3 of 'The Champion' newspaper of the 20th 
September. In my opinion it is demoralising and an experience of these shops young people do not need thrust 
upon them. I have lived in Ormskirk for 50 years, and it hurts me to think that this 'very old established market 
town' would have these openly sex establishments, which also would possibly bring undesirables into the area. 

33 Ormskirk Public I write regarding the new proposed policy on Sex Establishments. I wish to express my opposition to having 
any Sex Establishments in our Borough. I believe they are detrimental to society as a whole through the 
perversion of individuals, and the exploitation of other individuals. I would very much support keeping a zero 
limit on the number of such establishments. 

34 Ormskirk Public I am writing to you to say that I would encourage the council to maintain the zero rating for the kind of 
establishments that I feel would be inappropriate in Ormskirk. The town is already in a poor state with so many 
empty premises and although sex establishments might appeal to some, they would not be compatible with the 
status of market town which is how Ormskirk is described. There are several schools in Ormskirk and many of 

P
age 34



the school children would be going through the town centre morning and afternoon. I don't think it would be 
good for them to be exposed to these kind of places. Personally, I don't like the idea and do not ever want to 
see sex establishments in Ormskirk. 

35 New Ormskirk Residents 
Group 

Residents 
Group 

With regard to the above draft revised policy, I am writing on behalf of New Ormskirk Residents group to say 
that we have read the draft and support the proposals it contains. 

36 Ormskirk Public Its about the permission for a sex shop to open in Ormskirk, I for one do not wish to see one, and do not wish 
to have to pass one when shopping in Ormskirk. 

37 Ormskirk Public I write to support the proposed revision of the sex establishment licensing policy.  In particular I strongly 
support the limits for the numbers sex shops, sex cinemas and SEVs set out in paragraph 8.3 of the policy to 
each to be set at zero. To set the limits at zero will help to preserve the current character of the Borough and 
promote gender equality by discouraging the objectification of individuals, especially women for sexual 
purposes.  While it is appropriate to review and update the policy from time to time, nothing appears to have 
changed in society in West Lancashire that would justify substantive changes to the current policy. 

38 Ormskirk Public I hope that the Borough  Council will keep to the policy of no sex establishments in the Borough. I consider 
them to be immoral and degrading for the workers of such establishments. 

39 Ormskirk Public I am writing to protest against the policy of having sex shops, sex cinemas, lap dancing bars and live sex 
shows.  We don't want anything like this in our town.   It would be a terrible influence on our children, and other 
people who believe in the sacredness of Christian marriage. These shops will do damage to the character of 
the borough, cause exploitation and reinforce damaging  stereotypes and it could prevent further commercial 
potential in the area. We hope you will take these things into consideration, and do everything you can to 
protect our town from corruption. 

40 Ormskirk Public Please do not allow any sex establishments to be opened in Ormskirk. Many school children walk through the 
town centre on the way to and from school every day. Do not make them walk past establishments that 
proclaim that treating women as objects is an acceptable thing to do. 

41 Ormskirk Public I would like to give you my view concerning sex establishments in Ormskirk. I was born and brought up in 
Ormskirk which used to be such a lovely little town. This has all changed recently as it now seems to be 
overrun by all the student. I wonder is it because of the students that this is being considered. I have six 
grandchildren, two in their teens and the thought of them going into Ormskirk for a night out if this happens 
doesn't bare thinking about. Please don't let this happen we don't want Ormskirk getting a bad name as I'm 
sure it would.  

42 Aughton Public I've become aware that recently there have been applications for licences for sex establishments. Myself and 
my family are very much against the granting of any such licences. We live in a lovely area of West lancs and 
we must safeguard against these sleazy businesses invading our town. It is very important that we don't 
become the Soho of the North West. Please do not let this happen. 

43 Ormskirk Public Please Please continue to have a zero limit for sex establishments. I live in Ormskirk and would not want my 6 
children and 11 grandchildren subjected to any sex establishments it fills me with great sadness of the Council 
policy ever agrees with such establishments. Why spoil our wonderful market town. No change. Please. 

44 Ormskirk  Public We have lived in Ormskirk for over 52 years and brought up three children in the district. Our market town may 
now be turning into a university town, but we hope the council will retain the zero policy towards sex 
establishments. They may be set up in cities, but there is no need for such places in an area like West 

P
age 35



Lancashire. 

45 Ormskirk Public Very surprised and shocked to hear of your wish re council sex policy that is also the feeling of everyone I have 
discussed it with. The answer is no – let them go elsewhere to make their money. The repercussion of such a 
licence would be regretted.  

46 Ormskirk Public I have just become aware that a request has been made to open a sex shop in Ormskirk kept quiet so that 
most residents don't know anything about it. I was just horrified at this news. I am the grandmother of 2 teenage 
granddaughters who live in Ormskirk and often go into Ormskirk and the idea that they might encounter one of 
these [premises] who use one of these vile places just horrifies me. Ormskirk is a lovely market town so please 
keep it that way. 

47 Scarisbrick Public You are consulting the public on the possibility of sex establishments in Ormskirk. I for one don't want it. 
Ormskirk is a market town not a red light district. What do young parents say to their children, who are likely to 
ask "what sort of a shop is it?" "Why can't we go in?" See what I mean?  

48 Ormskirk Public I am writing to object to opening "sex establishment business" in Ormskirk. We do not need this type of 
business in Ormskirk, or in any part of Lancashire. There are lots of empty shops here in Ormskirk, which do 
need business, but not sexual business. 

49 Ormskirk Public My husband and I have recently learnt that the Council is in the process of reviewing its policy for the licensing 
of sex establishments. We feel strongly that this would have detrimental effects on children and young adults, 
would damage the character of the Borough and would prevent commercial potential in the area. Ormskirk has 
always been a very nice place to live in and any sex establishment in this town could only damage the very 
nature of this lovely town. We hope you will bear this in mind when you come to discuss this matter with the 
council.  

50 Aughton Public As a resident house owner in Ormskirk for the past 56 years, I have always been impressed by the general 
manners and good behaviour of the young people of the town. I am greatly worried however at the possibility of 
sex establishments being allowed in the town, maybe in unused shops or other such premise. I feel this would 
inevitably lead to increased drug problems, fighting and generally aggressive bad behaviour by people 
attending these places. I therefore strongly object to anything other than a zero tolerance for these 
establishments being allowed in our town. 

51 Aughton Public I am against the licensing of sex establishments in the market town of Ormskirk. 1. The town centre is in very 
close proximity to schools: primary, junior and senior. 2. These kind of establishments encourage licentious 
behaviour. 3. Plenty of private housing is near the town. Do families (rate payers) want to bring up their children 
in such an environment? 4. Property values would slump. Property would be hard to sell. 5. Extra policing 
surely would be needed. The police are supposedly underfunded, understaffed and stretched to the limits. 6. 
The good and historic name of Ormskirk would be besmirched. 7. Commercial potential and investment would 
be damaged. There is not one single positive in operating any kind of sex establishment in Ormskirk. If the 
unthinkable happened I certainly would move away from the district. 

52 Ormskirk Public I would like to support the Council policy, setting a limit of zero to any businesses related to the sex industry. I 
do not think changing this policy would promote the town in any positive way, and it is particularly inappropriate 
with so many young people coming here to live and attend Edge Hill University.  

53 Aughton Public I am writing to the Council today about my opposition to any type of sex establishment that may want to 
operate in our town of Ormskirk. I have lived here for 27 years. Ormskirk would suffer if any type of sex 

P
age 36



shop/club would be allowed a licence, it would promote a damaging effect on the town. The word sleazy, 
immoral, exploitation, seedy, corruption all spring to my mind. We do not want our families exposed to this type 
of shop/club, the other businesses in Ormskirk would not want to be associated with this. I can only imagine 
and it would not encourage new businesses to our town, which is much needed to fill some of the empty shops. 
Perhaps the Council can encourage new start up business for the first year, as I would love to see new shops 
opening, but just not ones selling sex items or clubs. PS I was made aware of the consultation process that the 
Council has to review every 5 years by my friends and fellow parishioners at St Anne's R.C. Church. Thank god 
I got my objection date in before the closing date of 29 September 2017. Many thanks.  

54 Ormskirk (related to no. 55: 
two separate but identical 
responses from the same 
address) 

Public As part of your current consultation on the above policy, I would like to register my strong feelings that the 
Council's policy of zero tolerance to such establishments should remain unchanged. As a parent and grand 
parent, with young children currently living in Ormskirk I am horrified by the thought that they may be subjected 
to having to see and walk past such places. In addition to this  they would bring down the tone of the whole 
town and area, attracting undesirable characters in, and probably discouraging many businesses from having a 
presence in the area. Edge Hill is a huge asset to Ormskirk, however it could also be targeted by such 
establishments as a ready source of people to work in their "industry". I'm sure potential students (and their 
parents) would also take a dim view of this. Please do not let our town and its residents be subjected to such 
anti social and dangerous establishments. 

55 Ormskirk (related to no. 54: 
two separate but identical 
responses from the same 
address) 

Public As part of your current consultation on the above policy, I would like to register my strong feelings that the 
Council's policy of zero tolerance to such establishments should remain unchanged. As a parent and grand 
parent, with young children currently living in Ormskirk I am horrified by the thought that they may be subjected 
to having to see and walk past such places. In addition to this  they would bring down the tone of the whole 
town and area, attracting undesirable characters in, and probably discouraging many businesses from having a 
presence in the area. Edge Hill is a huge asset to Ormskirk, however it could also be targeted by such 
establishments as a ready source of people to work in their "industry". I'm sure potential students (and their 
parents) would also take a dim view of this. Please do not let our town and its residents be subjected to such 
anti social and dangerous establishments. 

56 Ormskirk Public I am contacting you in response to the article in the local newspaper about the council's review of its policy for 
the licensing of sex establishments. I am grateful to have the opportunity to do so. Ormskirk is a lovely town  
and a good place to live. Please, please don't allow it to become  a place where there is a licensed sex 
establishment.  As you may already know, part of the curriculum for Year 2 children is to study their local 
environment .As a recently retired local schoolteacher, I have taken many groups of 6 and 7 year olds through 
Ormskirk town over the years, looking at and talking about all the buildings and studying the architecture , 
history and purpose of each building and how it serves the community.  I dread to think how a sex 
establishment would be explained to them ! So many impressionable high school children pass through the 
town every day . Do we really want them tobe walking past sex establishments and being influenced by the fact 
that these are places seemingly deemed fit to take a place in the life of our town? What message would that 
give to them? What kind of people would these establishments attract?  Do visitors who come to enjoy the 
market and great events like the annual switching on of the Christmas lights and Motor Fest really  want to be 
confronted by this  kind of establishment? Please Mr.Charlson, I am appealing to you to think very carefully 
before allowing this to happen in our home town.  Please don't allow it to happen. Thank you for taking the time 

P
age 37



to read and consider my views. 

57 Ormskirk Public We would like to add our names to the members of the community of Ormskirk and Aughton requesting that 
any attempt to set up sex shops and lap dancing in this borough be refused outright.  Such blatant exploitation 
within an ancient market town like ours is totally inappropriate. Anyone seeking this sort of shop can go to 
Liverpool or another big conurbation. 

58 Ormskirk Public I would like strongly oppose having any sex shops, lap dancing bars, strip clubs or anything like that in our town 
of Ormskirk. I think it is utterly abhorrent that the council is even considering it. I have not long moved to the 
area, I wanted a nicer place to bring up my daughter and in a short space of time seen a decline in the town 
centre, this concerns me. To have sex establishments is totally unacceptable, I thought the council was trying 
to rejuvenate the town centre not bring the whole area to disrepute.. 

59 Ormskirk Public I wish to add my voice to those requesting that the Council maintains its zero policy regarding sex 
establishments.. 

60 Ormskirk Public I wish to endorse and support the existing and draft Council policy on this matter, in not allowing any  sex 
establishments to operate in the WLBC area. The clause that  „ that permits deviation from this rule if there is a 
justifiable reason to do so‟ should be removed. Sex establishments of all types, including lap dance type  bars, 
have no place in Ormskirk and the wider  Borough area. The Council should take a  moral lead in decisions 
such as this. 

61 Ormskirk Public I am writing to express my concern at the proposal to grant licences for the provision of sex shops in Ormskirk. 
Of all the possibilities to attract people to the town, this is one of the least desirable, in that it would encourage 
the wrong people. My wife and I came to live in Ormskirk out of choice and brought up our children here. They 
now have children of their own and I would not like to think that our grandchildren would have to see sex shops 
in the town, wherever they are sited. 

62 Ormskirk Public I am writing to voice my concerns regarding the licensing of sex shops in Ormskirk and would like to raise very 
strong objections to this. We moved to Ormskirk because it was a small market town, which felt a very safe 
environment in which to bring up a family. I would not like our grandchildren to be exposed to these types of 
venues. Please do not let this licensing go ahead. 

63  Public I understand from newspaper articles that the above policy is being reviewed and that consequently there has 
been some revision. I am pleased to note, if the articles in the paper are correct, that the council does not intent 
to change its policy "from that currently in place" and that the revised policy "is largely unchanged from the 
current version". This is good news. I wish to register my objection to any easement of policy which would have 
effect of organisations or individuals opening such premises in the borough. I note the paragraphs in the papers 
which includes "…although legislation has responded to a changing society, where the public representation of 
sex has become more prevalent though advertising and popular culture…" this wording of a "changing society" 
is an attempt to justify, and make more acceptable the prevalence of sex and why there should be easements 
in sex legislation. As Ormskirk is one of the main towns in the borough it is almost certain to be a target for 
such businesses to open, should it be allowed, especially with it's increase in population of young 
impressionable people, as a result of the continual expansion of Edge Hill University.  Over the years we have 
lost individual quality shops due to mainly exorbitant business rates and the ridiculously high rates charged by 
respective landlords. We have seen many articles of how the town is losing it's identity and character, if 
discontinues and a subsequent policy change makes it easier for such places to open Ormskirk will become a 

P
age 38



town of boarded up shops, charity shops, betting shops, pubs, bars, take-aways, and finally sex shops. Then 
it's identify will have been lost completely.  

64 Ormskirk Public Firstly, until recently, I was unaware that a "Statement of Sex Establishment Licensing Policy February 2013" 
existed. I therefore thank you for giving me the opportunity to forward my comments on the document that is 
currently under review. The proposed amendments to the existing do not affect the overall Policy Statement 
except to amend the responsibilities to certain personnel, to which I have no comments to make. I would now 
like to take the opportunity to express my views on why I consider such establishments totally unsuitable. They 
are as follows: - I am totally against any such establishment being allowed to open in Ormskirk or any area in 
West Lancs. – Every effort is being made to make Ormskirk, a heritage town, appealing to new upmarket 
businesses, shoppers, families, tourists etc. Such establishments in the town would have the opposite effect, 
certainly lowering the town and standard. – I and people that I have spoken to would avoid shopping in 
Ormskirk and take our custom elsewhere. – Families could also take their custom elsewhere, not wanting their 
children to see such places and the clientele that would frequent them. – There are and will be concerns about 
safety in areas close to such establishments, and particularly at night time. – I am pleased to note and fully 
agree with the Authorities decision to set limits throughout the Borough for Sex Shops, Sex Cinemas, and 
SEV's to 0 (zero). – Whilst I appreciate that the "location of premises" para 8.4 states "including, but not limited 
to," I consider it appropriate that two other bullet points should be added to actually specify the following 
locations (1) premises in the vicinity of hospitals and clinic. (2) Premises in the vicinity of cafes and restaurants. 
– In Appendix 2 "External Appearance" should include "no model female torsos, are displayed particularly 
posing provocatively in scanty underwear." As is the case in a sex sop in London Street, Southport. Under 
"State, Condition and Layout of the Premises" there should be an additional entry that the Licence Holder is 
responsible to ensure that no such adverts/models are displayed inside the premises either. To do so is totally 
unacceptable making women on object for sex. – Such advertising is exacerbating an already poor attitude and 
treatment of women by some men. – The area in my opinion will become less safe with people drinking, then 
going into these establishments and leaving in whatever state there are in. – Having to have bouncers on the 
door, in case of any issues, highlights the unsuitability of such premises in the borough. The bouncers are not 
able to protect anyone, when the person leaves the establishment. Although some pubs have bouncers their 
customers leave after drink which is different from the clientele of sex establishments. – I agree that only the 
council should approve the design of the frontage of such premises including reference to the name etc. The 
shop I mentioned earlier in London Street, Southport is called Naughty and Nice" How inappropriate. It really 
highlights how unsavoury such places are. If they are shops only selling items for retail then why are they 
allowed display such advertising? Why do rules and conditions have to be made about certain things like no 
locks on cubicle doors, and premises cannot be used by prostitutes or for immoral purposes. It conveys to me 
that sex establishments can and sometimes do turn into premises of prostitution and "Massage Parlours". – 
Ormskirk has numerous youngsters 18 years and over attending Edge hill University who need protecting and 
not influenced and spoilt by licensing laws being amended to responding to a "changing society". As we all 
know a halt is much needed in some of these changes, otherwise where does it end up? – Licensee's names 
must be displayed outside the premises' as happens with Public Houses? – In my opinion the availability of sex 
establishments will bring into the borough unruly stag and hen parties. They will also encourage young people 
to enter the premises for a "dare" when they otherwise would not do so. I will leave it at that because it will be 

P
age 39



quite clear to you that I am very much against such places.    

65 Ormskirk Public I am writing with regards to the review of your policy for the licensing of sex establishments. I am pleased that 
the current policy remains largely unchanged. I am a father of three children and I would not be happy to see 
any form of sex establishment in the Borough. I believe that any such establishment would have a detrimental 
effect on children and young adults. I believe that such an establishment would reinforce damaging stereotypes 
and could lead to exploitation. I believe that such an establishment would have a detrimental effect on the 
commercial potential in the Borough. I believe that such an establishment would damage the character of the 
Borough. For these reasons I would not be happy to see any form of sex establishment in the Borough of West 
Lancashire. 

 

P
age 40



  Appendix 3: Statement of Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 
 
 

 
West Lancashire  
Borough Council 

 
 

 
Statement of Sex Establishment Licensing 

Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 20183 

Page 41



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 2
 

Introduction to this Policy Statement 
 
For  the  first  time,  aA  national  licensing  scheme  exists  for  the  entire  range  of  sex 
establishments. Legislation has responded to our changing society, where tWhilst the public 
representation  of  sex  has  become more  prevalent  through  advertising,  the  internet  and 
popular  culture,.  However,  this  may  in  turn  change  may  also  cause  concern  to  many 
members of the public. Notwithstanding  individual morality, many may take the view that 
the  presence  of  such  premises  damages  the  character  of  an  areathe  Borough,  prevents 
further commercial potential or could  lead to exploitation and reinforcement of damaging 
stereotypes.  
 
The  role of  the Council as Licensing Authority  is not  to  take a moral stance, but  to assess 
these arguments  in a  local context, while aiming to ensure regulatory balance. Parliament 
has made it lawful to operate a sex establishment and such businesses are a legitimate part 
of  the retail and  leisure  industries. However,  it  is appropriate  that  the Licensing Authority 
set out  its objectives and the means by which application processes can address potential 
concerns. In contrast to other licensing legislation, the Council is not under an obligation to 
publish a policy  for sex establishment  licensing. However, by publishing such a document, 
the Council  can  clearly  state  the needs of  its own  area  and dictate  the  requirements  for 
licensed operations. 
 
Without  such a document,  the Council could not  set out  the controls  to deter or enforce 
against rogue operators or to  impose conditions on  licensed operations to ensure they are 
run by the right people to the right standards. 
 
Before establishing this Policy, the Council undertook a consultation exercise, which aimed 
to  take  account  of  the  opinions  of  all  who  could  be  affected  by  the  legislation.  The 
consultation took place from the 31 July 2017 until the 29 September 2017 and has helped 
to shape this final version of the Policy. This Policy Statement will be reviewed at least every 
five years.  It was agreed by  the Council’s  Licensing and Gambling Committee on  the 10th 
October 2017. This Policy Statement was published on the 7th January 2018 and came  into 
force on the 11th February 2018.  
 
Where and to what extent sex establishments may be permitted is addressed in this Policy. 
Our  aim  is  to  provide  the means  by which  the  arguments  of  commercial  and  individual 
freedom  are  balanced  against  the  protection  of  the  character  of  the  Borough  and  the 
sensibilities of those who live and work in West Lancashire. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 42



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 3
 

Contents 
 
 

1.0   Legal Background and Rationale ...........................................................4 
 

2.0  Scope and Definitions ...........................................................................6 
 

3.0  Aims and Purpose .................................................................................9 
 
4.0  The Borough of West Lancashire ....................................................... 10 
 
5.0  Development Process / Consultation ................................................. 11 
 
6.0  Integration ......................................................................................... 12 
 
7.0  Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions ...................... 14 
 
8.0  Limitations on licensed premises ....................................................... 15 
 
9.0  Duration, cancellation and revocation of Licences ............................ 17 
 
10.0  Applications and fees ......................................................................... 18 
 
11.0  Contested applications ...................................................................... 20 
 
12.0  Appeals .............................................................................................. 22 
 
13.0  Enforcement ...................................................................................... 23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1: Reasons for refusal and revocation of licences ............................. 24 
Appendix 2: Standard conditions ‐ sex shops / sex cinema ............................... 25 
Appendix 3: Standard conditions ‐ SEVs ............................................................ 28 
Appendix 4: List of potential conditions ............................................................ 30 
Appendix 5: Useful contacts .............................................................................. 34 
 

Page 43



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 4
 

1.0   Legal Background and Rationale 
 
1.1 This Policy covers the licensing regime for Sex Establishments as contained in the 

Local  Government  (Miscellaneous  Provisions)  Act  1982  (the  1982  Act),  as 
amended by Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 (the 2009 Act). 

 
1.2 Whilst the provisions of the  legislation are not mandatory, the Council wantsed 

to ensure  it wais  legislatively equipped to address the needs of the community. 
West Lancashire Borough Council (the Council) has therefore adopted Schedule 3 
to  the 1982 Act  (as amended by Section 27 of  the 2009 Act), which allows  the 
Council  to  licence Sex Shops, Sex Cinemas and Sexual Entertainment Venues  in 
the Borough.  In  this Policy Statement, such premises will be  referred  to as Sex 
Establishments.  The  Council  is  designated  as  the  Licensing  Authority  (the 
Authority) for the purposes of the 1982 Act and is responsible for administering 
all of the relevant provisions in respect of Sex Establishments.  

 
1.3 In addition to the adoption of Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act, the Council has also 

passed a resolution to determine and licence Sexual Entertainment Venues. This 
resolution was passed on the 21st July 2010 in accordance with paragraph 2(2) of 
Schedule 3 of the 2009 Act. The Council published a notice to this effect on the 
30th  September  2010  and  the  7th  October  2010.  The  amendments  made  by 
Section 27 of the 2009 Act to Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act came  into effect from 
the 1st November 2010. The 2009 Act also required that a 12 month transitional 
period  be  established  so  that  any  existing  businesses  could  make  suitable 
provisions. The  transitional period ended on 21st  July 2011, and  so  the Council 
has been able to licence all such Sex Establishments since that time. 

 
1.4 After  the 1st appointed day, new applicants would not be able  to operate as a 

Sexual Entertainment Venue until they had been granted a Sexual Entertainment 
Venue licence. The 2nd appointed day was established to ensure applications for 
new and existing operations could be considered  together and  that each could 
be considered on their individual merits and not on a first come first serve basis.  

 
1.5 Accordingly, no applications could be determined before the 2nd appointed day. 

After  the  2nd  appointed  day,  the  Authority  could  decide what  if  any  licences 
should be granted.  If a new applicant were  to be granted a  licence,  it will  take 
effect  immediately.  If an existing operator were granted a  licence,  it would not 
take effect until the 3rd appointed day, up to which point they would have been 
allowed  to  continue  to  operate  under  their  existing  Premises  Licence  or  Club 
Premises Certificate. 

 
1.6 Notwithstanding  the  content  of  paragraphs  1.4  to  1.6,  no  Sex  Establishments 

existed  in the Borough at the time of the 1st appointed day and no applications 
were received during the transitional period. 

 
1.71.4 This  Policy  Statement  sets  out  the  approach  the  Authority will  generally  take 

when considering, and making decisions on, applications for Sex Establishments 
made under the 1982 Act ‐ as well the enforcement of standards. The Authority 
may, if it considers appropriate, deviate from this Policy, and if such a deviation 

Page 44



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 5
 

is taken, the Authority will provide full substantiated and justified reasons as why 
that decision was taken. 

 
1.81.5 Nothing in this Policy Statement will undermine the rights of any person to apply 

for  a  Sex  Establishment  licence  under  the  1982  Act  and  have  the  application 
considered  on  its  individual merits  in  accordance with  the  relevant  legislation 
and this Policy Statement.  

 
1.91.6 This Policy  Statement  shall be effective  from  the 11th  February 2018  and  shall 

remain  in effect for five years; therefore this Policy Statement will be reviewed 
by the 10th February 2023. 

 
1.101.7 This Policy Statement will also be kept under review during this five year period. 

The Assistant Director Community Services will maintain a An  Issues Log will be 
maintained  in  which  all  issues  pertaining  to  this  Policy  Statement  will  be 
recorded. Therefore the Authority will make revisions to the Policy Statement at 
such  times as  it considers appropriate,  for example where relevant  issues have 
arisen,  or where matters  recorded  in  the  Issues  Log  indicate  that  that  such  a 
review is required.  

 

Page 45



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 6
 

2.0  Scope and Definitions 
 
2.1 This  Policy  Statement  covers  all  applications,  notifications  and  authorisations 

provided  by  the  1982  Act  for  the  licensing  and  enforcement  of  Sex 
Establishments, namely:  

 

 Sex Shops; 

 Sex Cinema; 

 Sexual Entertainment Venues. 
 
Sex Shops 
2.2 This is defined in the 1982 Act as any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall used for a 

business  which  consists  to  a  significant  degree  of  selling,  hiring,  exchanging, 
lending, displaying or demonstrating: 
a) sex articles; or 
b) other  things  intended  for  use  in  connection  with,  or  for  the  purpose  of 

stimulating or encouraging: 
(i) sexual activity; or 
(ii) acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity. 

 
2.3 No premises  shall be  treated as a  sex  shop by  reason only of  their use  for  the 

exhibition of moving pictures by whatever means produced. 
 
2.4 “Sex article” is defined in the 1982 Act as: 

a) anything made for use  in connection with, or for the purpose of stimulating 
or encouraging— 
(i) sexual activity; or 
(ii) acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity; and 

b) anything to which paragraph 2.5 below applies. 
 

2.5 This Paragraph applies: 
a) to  any  article  containing  or  embodying matter  to  be  read  or  looked  at  or 

anything  intended  to  be  used,  either  alone  or  as  one  of  a  set,  for  the 
reproduction or manufacture of any such article; and 

b) to any recording of vision or sound, which: 
(i) is  concerned  primarily with  the  portrayal  of,  or  primarily deals with  or 

relates to, or is intended to stimulate or encourage, sexual activity or acts 
of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity; or 

(ii) is  concerned  primarily with  the  portrayal  of,  or  primarily deals with  or 
relates to, genital organs, or urinary or excretory functions. 

 
Sex Cinema 
2.6 This is defined in the 1982 Act as any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall used to a 

significant  degree  for  the  exhibition  of moving  pictures,  by  whatever means 
produced, which: 
a) are concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deal with or relate 

to, or are intended to stimulate or encourage   
(i) sexual activity; or 
(ii) acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity; or 

Page 46



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 7
 

b) are concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deal with or relate 
to, genital organs or urinary or excretory functions, 

 
but does not include a dwelling‐house to which the public is not admitted. 
 

2.7 No premises shall be treated as a sex cinema by reason only: 
a) if they are licensed under Section 1 of the Cinemas Act 1985, of their use for 

a purpose for which a licence under that Section is required; or 
b) of  their  use  for  an  exhibition  to which  section  6  of  that  Act  (certain  non‐

commercial  exhibitions)  applies  given  by  an  exempted  organisation within 
the meaning of section 6(6) of that Act. 

 
Sexual Entertainment Venues 
2.8 Section 27 of the 2009 Act reclassified lap dancing clubs and similar venues into a 

separate  category  of  Sex  Establishment  called  a  Sexual  Entertainment  Venue 
(SEV) and gave the Council the power to regulate such venues under Schedule 3 
of the 1982 Act. Paragraph 2A was added to Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act to widen 
the  definition  of  a  Sex  Establishment  to  include  an  SEV  and  Relevant 
Entertainment.  

 
2.9 An SEV  is defined as “any premises at which relevant entertainment  is provided 

before a live audience for the financial gain of the organiser or the entertainer.”  
 
2.10 The definition of  ‘Relevant Entertainment’  is given as “any  live performance or 

live display of nudity which  is of  such  a nature  that,  ignoring  financial  gain,  it 
must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or principally for the purpose 
of sexually stimulating any member of an audience (whether by verbal or other 
means).”  

 
2.11 Both  definitions  aim  to  provide  a  pragmatic  interpretation  and  therefore  an 

audience can consist of  just one person. Whilst the determination of each case 
will  be  judged  on  its merits,  this  Policy  Statement  considers  the  definition  of 
Relevant Entertainment to apply to the following forms of entertainment as they 
are commonly understood:  

 

 Lap dancing; 

 Pole dancing;  

 Table dancing; 

 Strip shows; 

 Peep shows; 

 Live sex shows.  
   
2.12 Paragraph  2A  of  the  1982 Act  also  defines  those  premises  that would  not  be 

classed as a SEV, namely: 
 

 Sex shops and sex cinemas (which are separately defined in Schedule 3 to the 
1982 Act) 

 Premises  which  provide  Relevant  Entertainment  on  an  infrequent  basis. 
These are defined as premises where: 

Page 47



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 8
 

a) no  relevant  entertainment  has  been  provided  on  more  than  11 
occasions within a 12 month period;  

b) no such occasion has begun within a period of one month beginning 
with the end of the previous occasions; and  

c) no such occasion has lasted longer than 24 hours.  

 Other premises or types of performances or displays exempted by an order of 
the Secretary of State.  

 
2.13 The matters detailed  in paragraph 2.12 do not obviate a person from any other 

statutory requirements outside the remit of this Policy Statement. 
 
2.14 The 2009 Act also amended the Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) to ensure that 

premises  for which  an  SEV  licence  is  required,  or  held,  do  not  also  require  a 
Premises Licence, Club Premises Certificate or Temporary Event Notice  in order 
to  provide  Relevant  Entertainment.  This  is  because  such  entertainment  is 
expressly excluded from the definition of ‘Regulated Entertainment’ found in the 
2003 Act. However,  if the premises also provides other  licensable activities (e.g. 
the sale/supply of alcohol or the provision of Regulated Entertainment that is not 
Relevant  Entertainment),  they  will  nevertheless  require  the  relevant 
authorisation under the 2003 Act.  

 
 
 

Page 48



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 9
 

3.0  Aims and Purpose  
 
3.1 The  Authority  does  not  take  a  moral  stance  in  this  Policy  Statement.  The 

Authority  recognises  that  Parliament  has  made  it  lawful  to  operate  a  Sex 
Establishment, and  that  such businesses are a  legitimate part of  the  retail and 
leisure  industries.  The Authority’s  role  is  to  administer  the  licensing  regime  in 
accordance  with  the  law.  The  Council  adopted  the  legislation  to  licence  Sex 
Establishments  to  set  out  the  controls  to  deter  or  enforce  against  rogue 
operators or to impose conditions on licensed operations to ensure they are run 
by the right people to the right standards.  

 
3.2 Therefore, the aims of this Policy Statement are to: 
 

 Preserve the character of the Borough; 

 Protect the public; 

 Protect the staff employed in Sex Establishments; 

 Promote good management standards in Sex Establishments; 

 Promote gender equality. 
 
3.3 Each of  these aims  is  considered of equal  importance  for  the purposes of  this 

Policy Statement. 
 
3.4 The purpose of this Policy Statement  is to set out the objectives and the means 

by which  the Authority  can  balance  potential  concerns  of  those who  live  and 
work  in  the  Borough  against  commercial  and  individual  freedoms  established 
under the 1982 Act.  

 
3.5 The purpose of the Authority’s licensing duties is the control of licensed premises 

and  operations  defined  under  the  relevant  legislation. Where  conditions  are 
attached  to  a  licence  specific,  these will  focus  on matters  that  are within  the 
control of the  individual Licence Holder and will centre on the operation of the 
business and employees, the premises and its location. 

 
 

Page 49



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 10
 

4.0  The Borough of West Lancashire 
 
4.1 West Lancashire Borough Council  is situated  in the County of Lancashire, which 

contains 12 District Councils and 2 Unitary Councils, and is the most southerly of 
the  Local  Authorities  within  the  County.  The  Borough  has  a  population  of 
110,700  (National Census 2011) and covers an area of over 34,000 hectares, a 
large proportion of which is good and versatile agricultural land. The Borough has 
two  market  towns:  Ormskirk  and  Burscough,  with  mainly  rural  parishes  and 
villages to the north and the former New Town of Skelmersdale to the east. 

 
4.2 West Lancashire is an attractive area and has a good transport links. The Borough 

benefits  from  social,  retail  and  leisure  links  with  the  nearby  urban  areas  of 
Liverpool, Southport, Preston and Wigan. These factors have led to Ormskirk and 
other parts of the Borough becoming popular areas to live for commuters. 

 

Page 50



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 11
 

5.0  Development Process / Consultation 
 
5.1 This  Policy  Statement  has  been  developed  after  proper  consultation with  the 

public, businesses and other agencies that may be affected by the operation of 
Sex Establishments within the Borough. A period of public consultation operated 
from the 31 July 2017 until the 29 September 2017 and the Authority has given 
due  regard  to  the  responses  from  this  consultation  process when  formulating 
this Policy Statement. The  list of  consultees  is maintained  separately  from  this 
Policy  Statement  and  is  available  from  the  Licensing  Service using  the  contact 
details in Appendix 5. 

 
5.2 In determining  this Policy Statement,  the Authority has given proper weight  to 

the  views  of  those  it  has  consulted.  This  Policy  Statement  has  not  been 
developed  in  isolation.  It  has  been  developed  in  conjunction  with  other 
Lancashire  Authorities  and  regulatory  agencies  involved,  or  affected  by,  the 
operation of Sex Establishments.  

 

Page 51



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 12
 

6.0  Integration  
 
6.1 The  Authority  recognises  the  need  to  avoid  duplication with  other  regulatory 

regimes. However, these general duties may not adequately address the unique 
circumstances  that  may  arise  within  the  Sex  Establishment  licensing  regime. 
Therefore,  the Authority  has  created  a  set  of  standard  conditions  (detailed  in 
Appendices 2 and 3) that are designed to integrate these requirements into Sex 
Establishment licences.  

 
6.2 Given  that  each new  application will be determined by  a  Sub‐Committee  (see 

Section 7.0), the Sub‐Committee will approve the attachment of these standard 
conditions  to  a  licence.  The  Sub‐Committee  may  also  amend  any  of  these 
standard  conditions  and/or  add  other  condition(s)  it  considers  necessary  and 
proportionate  to address  the  issues presented  in a given application. The Sub‐
Committee may use the list of potential conditions detailed in Appendix 4 for this 
purpose. 
 

Equalities 
6.3 This Policy Statement also  recognises Section 149 of  the Equality Act 2010 and 

the  Authority  will  have  due  regard  to  the  need  to  eliminate  discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation within the remit of the Sex Establishment licensing 
regime. The conditions listed in this Policy Statement are designed to reflect this 
requirement,  whilst  acknowledging  the  individual  rights  of  any  person  who 
wishes to knowingly and freely work and/or perform within a Sex Establishment. 

   
Crime and Disorder   
6.4 The Council has a responsibility under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 

1998  to  do  all  it  reasonably  can  to  reduce  crime  and  disorder  in  its  area  by 
working closely with other key statutory partners.  

 
6.5 The Police and  Justice Act 2006 amended  the Crime and Disorder Act 1998  to 

widen  the  statutory  responsibilities  under  Section  17  to  include  anti‐social 
behaviour and other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment and the 
misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances. 

 
6.6 Accordingly,  it  is  recognised  that  prevention  of  crime  and  disorder  is  a  vital 

element of ensuring the quality of  life  in a community and an  important aspect 
of a successful and vibrant economy. Where there is evidence that premises may 
be a contributor to crime and/or anti social behaviour, the Authority will use its 
licensing powers to do all  it can to reasonably prevent  it. The Authority will use 
its Multi Agency Licensing Team (MALT) for this purpose (Section 13.0). 

 
Planning Control 
6.7 Applications for Sex Establishment  licences for permanent commercial premises 

should  normally  be  from  businesses  with  planning  consent  for  the  property 
concerned. The Authority will therefore not normally process an application for 
permanent  commercial  premises  unless  it  can  be  demonstrated  that  the 
premises  either  have  an  appropriate  planning  consent  or  an  appropriate 
certificate of lawful use or development.  

Page 52



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 13
 

 
The Health Act 2006 – workplace smoking ban 
6.8 The ban on smoking in all enclosed workplaces and public spaces came into force 

on 1 July 2007. This ban includes Sex Establishments.  
 
Multi Agency Licensing Team (MALT) 
6.96.8 The Authority will use  its Multi Agency Licensing Team (MALT) (Section 13.0) to 

ensure  that  appropriate  liaison  arrangements  are  in  place  to  ensure  proper 
integration  of  the  strategic  and  legislative  regimes  that  impact  upon  Sex 
Establishment licensing. 

 
 

Page 53



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 14
 

7.0  Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions 
 
7.1 The Authority is involved in a wide range of licensing functions and the Licensing 

and  Gambling  Committee  will  administer  the  responsibility  for  Sex 
Establishments.  This  Committee  consists  of  15  elected  Members  and  has  1 
chairman  and  1  vice  chairman.  The  Committee  is  further  divided  into  a  Sub‐
Committee(s) of 3 elected Members (the Sub‐Committee). 

 
7.2 A meeting of the full Licensing and Gambling Committee will be held when  it  is 

considered necessary to review the contents of this Policy Statement, to comply 
with legislation or to determine any other matter of relevance to the Authority. 

 
7.3 All  applications  for  the  grant  of  a  new  Sex  Establishment  licence  will  be 

determined  by  a  Sub‐Committee,  irrespective  of  whether  objections  are 
received.  

 
7.4 AThe  Sub‐Committee will  sit  to  hear  all  other  renewal,  variation  and  transfer 

applications  for  Sex  Establishment  licences,  if  they  have  attracted  objections 
against the grant of the relevant application.  

 
7.5 Where no objections have been received  in response to renewal, variation and 

transfer applications  for  Sex Establishment  licences,  these will be approved by 
the  Assistant  Director  Community  ServicesDirector  of  Leisure  and  Wellbeing 
Services, provided he is satisfied that such approval will not be inconsistent with 
any aspect of  this Policy Statement.  If  the Assistant Director  is not so satisfied, 
the  application will  be  referred  to  the  Licensing  and Gambling  Committee  (or 
Sub‐Committee) for determination.  

 
7.6 All  decisions  made  by  the  Licensing  and  Gambling  Committee  (or  Sub‐

Committee) or the Assistant Director Community ServicesDirector of Leisure and 
Wellbeing Services will be confirmed  in writing to the applicant and any person 
who has made an objection forthwith.  

 
7.7 Where no objections are made,  the  licence will normally be granted subject  to 

the  standard  conditions  set  out  in  Appendix  2  (sex  shops  /  sex  cinema)  or 
Appendix 3 (SEVs) as appropriate. 

 
 

Page 54



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 15
 

8.0  Limitations on licensed premises  
 
8.1 The Authority can only refuse to grant or renew a Sex Establishment  licence on 

one or more of the specific grounds set out in Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act. These 
grounds are detailed in Appendix 1. 

 
8.2 Two of  these grounds  (against which  there  is no  statutory  right of appeal) are 

that:  
 
(1) The number of Sex Establishments  in the  locality where they are situated at 

the time the application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which the 
Authority consider is appropriate for that locality;  

 
and 
 
(2) The grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having regard to:  

(i) The character of the locality where they are situated, or  
(ii) The use to which any premises in the vicinity are put, or  
(iii) The layout, character or condition of the premises in respect of which the 

application is made.  
 
Number of premises 
8.3 The first of the above grounds means that a licence application may be refused if, 

when  a  licence  is  considered,  the  number  of  Sex  Establishments  (or  Sex 
Establishments  of  a  particular  kind)  in  the  locality  is  equal  to  or  exceeds  the 
number that the Authority would consider appropriate for that  locality. For this 
purpose, the Authority has set the following limits: 

 

 The number of Sex Shops  throughout  the Borough  is currently  limited  to 0 
(zero); 

 The number of Sex Cinemas throughout the Borough is currently limited to 0 
(zero); 

 The number of SEVs throughout the Borough is currently limited to 0 (zero). 
 
Location of premises 
8.4 With  regard  to  the  second  of  the  above  grounds,  the  Authority  has  decided, 

without  prejudice  to  the  generality  of  the  statutory  ground,  that  it would  be 
inappropriate to grant or renew a Sex Establishment licence in any case where:  

  

 The  character of  the  locality  is  residential, or predominantly  residential,  in 
nature; 

 The character of the locality is historically important; 

 Premises in the vicinity are used for places of religious worship; 

 Premises in the vicinity are used for schools, children’s nurseries, youth clubs, 
children’s centres or similar establishments which children under 18 years of 
age may reasonably be expected to attend; 

 Premises  in  the vicinity are used  for community  facilities  including, but not 
limited  to,  swimming pools,  leisure centres, public parks,  sheltered housing 
and accommodation for vulnerable people; 

Page 55



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 16
 

 The application premises are of a permanent character and do not have the 
necessary  planning  permission  in  place  to  enable  the  licensed  activities 
sought to occur lawfully (paragraph 6.7). 

 
8.5 The term “vicinity” is not defined in this Policy Statement. Whether or not other 

premises  /  activities  can  be  regarded  as  being  “in  the  vicinity”  of  a  proposed 
licensed premises  is ultimately a matter of  fact  to be decided by  the Courts  in 
cases  of  dispute.  The  Authority  will,  however,  primarily  focus  on  the  direct 
impact of  the  activities  taking place  at  the proposed  licensed premises on  the 
public living, working and engaged in normal activity in the area concerned. 

 
8.6 The Authority cannot reject any application without first considering it – even if it 

breaches  the  limits detailed  in paragraphs 8.3 and 8.4. As  stated  in paragraph 
1.4,  the  Authority  may,  if  it  considers  appropriate,  deviate  from  this  Policy 
Statement.  Therefore,  if  an  application  breaches  the  aforementioned  limits,  a 
Sub‐Committee  will  initially  consider  whether  there  is  justification  to  deviate 
from these limits. Only where sufficient evidence exists and the Authority is able 
to  provide  full  substantiated  and  justified  reasons why  a deviation  away  from 
these  limits  is  warranted,  will  the  application  be  further  determined.  If  the 
Authority considers there to be  insufficient evidence to  justify such a deviation, 
the application will be refused.  

 
Waivers  
8.7 The  Authority  does  not  consider  it  appropriate  to  permit  waivers  from  the 

requirements  to  hold  a  Sex  Establishment  licence,  except  in  very  exceptional 
circumstances  considered  by  the  Licensing  and  Gambling  Committee  (or  Sub‐
Committee). 

 

Page 56



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 17
 

9.0  Duration, cancellation and revocation of Licences  
 
Duration  
9.1 Unless cancelled or  revoked, a  licence shall  remain  in  force  for one year or  for 

such shorter period as the Authority may think fit when granting it. 
 
Cancellation 
9.2 The  licence holder may submit a written request to the Authority to cancel the 

licence at any time.  
 
9.3 In the event of the death of a licence holder, the licence will be deemed to have 

been  granted  to  his  personal  representatives  and  will  remain  in  force  for  3 
months from the date of death, unless previously revoked.  

 
9.4 Where the Authority is satisfied that it is necessary for the purpose of winding up 

the estate of  the deceased  licence holder,  it may extend or  further extend  the 
period in which the licence remains in force.  

 
Revocation 
9.5 The Authority may revoke a licence:  
 

 On any of the grounds specified  in paragraph 1 of Appendix 1 to this Policy 
Statement;  

 On either of the grounds specified in paragraph 3 (a) and (b) of Appendix 1 to 
this Policy Statement.  

 
9.6 The  Authority will  not  revoke  a  licence without  first  giving  the  holder  of  the 

licence  the  opportunity  of  appearing  and making  representations  before  thea 
Licensing and Gambling Sub‐Committee. Where a  licence  is  revoked,  its holder 
shall be disqualified from holding or obtaining a  licence  in the Borough of West 
Lancashire for 12 months beginning with the date of revocation. 

Page 57



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 18
 

10.0  Applications and fees 
 
Applications  
10.1 The  Authority  has  specified  the  form  of  application  for  the  grant  of  a  Sex 

Establishment  licence.  Applications  will  only  be  accepted  using  the  specified 
application  form. The application  form  requires detailed  information about  the 
proposed premises, its operation, management and staff. Applicants are advised 
to  seek  legal  advice  if  they  intend  to  submit  an  application  to  the Council. All 
relevant  forms  and  guidance  can  be  obtained  from  the  Licensing  Service 
(Appendix 5 – useful contacts). 

 
10.2 Applications  in respect of premises must state the full address of the premises. 

Applications  in  respect of a vehicle, vessel or  stall must  state where  it  is  to be 
used as a Sex Establishment. 

 
10.3 The  premises may  be  subject  to  inspection  by  the  Council’s  Licensing Officers 

(and/or  any  other  authorised Officer)  before,  during  and  after  the  application 
process. 

 
Public notices 
10.4 A notice must be displayed (where it can be conveniently read from the exterior 

of  the  premises)  at  or  on  the  premises  to which  the  application  relates  for  a 
period of not  less than 21 consecutive days from the day following the day the 
application was given to the Authority.  

 
10.5 Where  the  premises  cover  an  area  of more  than  50  square metres,  a  further 

identical notice must be displayed every 50 metres along the external perimeter 
of the premises abutting any highway. 

 
10.6 The notice must be on pale blue paper sized A4 or  larger and printed  legibly  in 

black ink or typed in black in a font size equal to or larger than 16.  
 
10.7 The notice must state:   
 

 Details of the application and activities that  it  is proposed will be carried on 
or from the premises; 

 The full name of the applicant; 

 The postal address of  the premises, or  in  the case where  there  is no postal 
address, a description of  the premises sufficient  to enable  the  location and 
extent of the premises to be identified; 

 The date, being 28 days after  that on which  the application  is given  to  the 
Council,  by  which  representations may  be made  to  the  Council  and  that 
objections should be made in writing; 

 That  it  is  an  offence  knowingly  or  recklessly  to make  a  false  statement  in 
connection with an application and  the maximum  fine  (£5000)  for which a 
person is liable on summary conviction for the offence.  

 

Page 58



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 19
 

10.8 A  notice  containing  the  above  information  must  be  published  in  a  local 
newspaper(s) circulating in the Borough within 7 days of giving the application to 
the Council. 

 
10.9 The applicant must give a copy of the full application to Lancashire Constabulary 

Licensing Unit  (Appendix 5 – useful  contacts) within 7 days  from  the date  the 
application was submitted to the Authority. 

 
Variation applications 
10.10 The holder of  a  licence may  apply  at  any  time  for  any  variation of  the  terms, 

conditions or restrictions on or subject to which the licence is held.  
 
10.11 The process of applying  for a  variation  is  the  same as  that  for applying  for an 

initial  grant, using  the  same  application  form  and public Notice, except  that  a 
plan  of  the  premises  is  not  required  unless  the  application  involves  structural 
alterations to the premises.  

 
Renewal applications 
10.12 The holder of  a  licence may  apply  for  renewal of  the  licence.  In order  for  the 

licence to continue to have effect during the renewal process, a valid application 
together with the appropriate fee must be submitted before the current licence 
expires. 

 
10.13 The process of applying for renewal of a licence is the same as that for applying 

for an  initial grant, using  the  same application  form, except  that a plan of  the 
premises is not required.  

 
Transfer applications 
10.14 A person may apply for transfer of a licence at any time. The process of applying 

for transfer of a licence is the same as that for applying for an initial grant, using 
the same application form, except that a plan of the premises and a public Notice 
is not required.  

 
Fees  
10.15 The application process  involves paying a non‐returnable application  fee which 

includes  the  cost  of  inspecting  premises,  processing  the  application  and 
Committee hearing. 

 
10.16 A  current  list of  all  fees  relating  to  the  licensing of  Sex Establishments  can be 

obtained from the Licensing Service (Appendix 5 – useful contacts).  
  
 
 

Page 59



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 20
 

11.0  Contested applications 
 
General 
11.1 The Authority will determine all applications in accordance with Section 7.0. If an 

application  is  to  be  determined  by  athe  Sub‐Committee,  a  report  to  will  be 
prepared which will contain all  relevant  information  to  the case. Copies of  this 
report will be provided to all parties to the Committee hearing. 

 
11.2 Each case will be determined on  its  individual merits and the Authority will give 

appropriate weight to:  
 

 The relevant legislation; 

 The information provided by all parties to the Committee hearing; 

 This Policy Statement. 
 
11.3 A  legal advisor, advocate or a friend may represent any party to the Committee 

hearing,  where  such  individuals  choose  not  to  represent  themselves. 
Accordingly, in an effort to assist all parties when preparing for and participating 
in the Committee hearing, the Authority has prepared a hearing procedure. This 
procedure will be adhered  to  in all hearings and a copy will be provided  to all 
parties  in  advance  of  the  Committee  hearing.  The  hearing  procedure  is 
maintained  separately  from  this  Policy  Statement  and  is  available  from  the 
Licensing Service using the contact details in Appendix 5. 

 
11.4 The  applicant,  licence  holder  or  person  to whom  a  licence  is  intended  to  be 

transferred will be given  the opportunity  to attend and be heard by athe Sub‐
Committee. In accordance with the 1982 Act, objectors do not have the right to 
be  afforded  an  oral  hearing,  but  may  do  so  at  the  discretion  of  athe  Sub‐
Committee.  

 
11.5 Whilst  athe  Sub‐Committee will usually meet  in public, Members do have  the 

power to hear certain applications in private. Where this is required all parties to 
the Committee hearing shall be informed. 

 
11.6 A public announcement of the decision will be made at the end of the relevant 

Committee  hearing  and  a written  copy  of  the  decision will  be  provided  to  all 
parties  to  the hearing. The decision determined by  the Sub‐ Committee will be 
accompanied  with  clear  reasons  for  the  decision,  having  regard  to  relevant 
legislation. 

 
Site visits 
11.7 Prior to hearing an application, Members of athe Sub‐Committee may choose to 

conduct a site visit to the premises concerned and any other relevant  locations. 
The  visit  is  conducted  to  ensure Members  have  a  full  understanding  of  the 
application,  the  premises  and  the  locality.  To  preserve  the  integrity  of  the 
Committee  process,  such  visits will  be  carried  out  in  accordance with  a  strict 
protocol. This protocol is maintained separately from this Policy Statement and is 
available from the Licensing Service using the contact details in Appendix 5. 

 

Page 60



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 21
 

Objections 
11.8 Objections may be made by any person to an application for the grant, renewal 

or transfer of a Sex Establishment  licence. Objections may only be made within 
the period of 28 days following the date on which the application was submitted 
to the Authority.  

 
11.9 Objections must be received  in writing (including email) at the Licensing Service 

office  (Appendix  5  –  useful  contacts).  Objections must  provide  the  following 
information as a minimum:  

 

 The name and address of the person (or body) making the objection; 

 The grounds of the objection, including supporting evidence; 

 The  signature of  the person  (or  representative of  the body) making  the 
objection; 

 The date the objection was made. 
 
11.10 The  Authority  will  not  consider  any  objection  that  does  not  contain  the 

information contained in paragraph 11.9. The Authority will also not consider any 
objection that is of an abusive and/or defamatory nature. 

 
11.11 The content of each objection will form part of a report to the Sub‐Committee. 

All  potential  objectors must  note  that  such  reports  are  public  documents  and 
therefore subject to public scrutiny. Any matters of a confidential nature should 
be considered carefully. The Authority will remove any personal information (i.e. 
objector  name  and  signature)  from  its  reports;  however,  the  Authority  will 
provide copies of the objections to the applicant.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 22
 

12.0  Appeals 
 
12.1 Applicants,  licence holders or objectors  that are aggrieved by  the decision of a 

Sub‐Committee may  (depending on  the precise reasons of  the decision) have a 
right of appeal  to  the Magistrates’ Court. An appeal would normally be  lodged 
with  the  Justices’  Chief  Executive  of  the  South West  Lancashire Magistrates’ 
Court within a period of 21 days, beginning from the day on which the Authority 
notified the applicant of the decision (i.e. the day of the Committee hearing).  

 
12.2 As soon as the decision of the Magistrates’ Court has been made, the Authority 

will not delay  its  implementation and necessary action will be  taken  forthwith 
unless ordered by a higher court to suspend such action (for example as a result 
of a judicial review).  

Page 62



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 23
 

13.0  Enforcement 
 
General 
13.1 Once  licensed,  it  is  essential  that  premises  are  maintained  and  operated  to 

ensure  continued  compliance  with  the  conditions  of  licence  and  relevant 
legislation. It is also important that illegal operations are prevented. 

 
13.2 Where  the Authority considers enforcement necessary, any  such action will be 

taken  in  accordance  with  the  Community  ServicesLeisure  and  Wellbeing 
Enforcement  Policy  (which  is  available  from  the Assistant Director Community 
ServicesDirector  of  Leisure  and  Wellbeing  Services,  at  the  address  given  in 
Appendix  5).  To  this  end,  the  key  principles  of  consistency,  transparency  and 
proportionality will be maintained. 

 
13.3 The Authority will make arrangements to monitor premises and take appropriate 

enforcement  action.  Enforcement  visits  will  therefore  be  carried  out  as  a 
response to a complaint(s) or as part of a proactive risk based inspection regime 
and/or targeted initiative.  

 
Multi Agency Licensing Team (MALT) 
13.4 The  coordination of  its  enforcement duties  requires  the Authority  to maintain 

close, and regular, liaison with other enforcement agencies as well other bodies 
involved in the licensing process. The MALT has been established for this purpose 
and  is coordinated by  the Authority. All Responsible Authorities  (defined under 
the 2003 Act) are represented at the MALT, which meets approximately every 8 
weeks (or more frequently if required).  

 
13.5 The MALT  ensures  that  a  coordinated  and  proactive  approach  to  the  issues 

arising from licensed operations can be formulated and delivered. However, the 
role of the MALT is not solely focused upon enforcement activity. It also sees the 
promotion  and  encouragement  of  best  practice  within  the  industry  as  being 
fundamental in the development of responsibly managed licensed operations.  

 
Complaints  
13.6 Where possible and appropriate the Authority will give early warning to  licence 

holders of any concerns about problems  identified at premises and of the need 
for improvement.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 24
 

Appendix 1: Reasons for refusal and revocation of licences  
 

1. The Council must refuse to grant or transfer a licence to: 
(a) A person under the age of 18; 
(b) A person who is for the time being disqualified from holding a licence;  
(c) A  person,  other  than  a  body  corporate,  who  is  not  resident  in  the  European 

Economic  Area  or  was  not  so  resident  throughout  the  period  of  6  months 
immediately preceding the date upon which the application was made;  

(d) A body corporate which is not incorporated in the European Economic Area;  
(e) A person who has, within the period of 12 months immediately preceding the date 

upon which  the  application was made,  been  refused  the  grant  or  renewal  of  a 
licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the application 
is made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal.  

 
2. The Council may refuse: 

(a) an  application  for  grant or  renewal of  a  licence on one or more of  the  grounds 
shown in paragraph 3 below;  

(b) an application for transfer of a  licence on either or both of the grounds shown  in 
paragraph 3 (a) and (b) below.  

 
3. The grounds mentioned in paragraph 2 above are:   

(a) That  the  applicant  is  unsuitable  to  hold  the  licence  by  reason  of  having  been 
convicted of an offence or for any other reason;  

(b) That  if  the  licence were  to  be  granted,  renewed  or  transferred  the  business  to 
which  it  relates would be managed by or carried on  for  the benefit of a person, 
other than the applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of 
such a licence if he made the application himself;  

(c) That the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality that the application 
is  made  is  equal  to  or  exceeds  the  number  which  the  council  considers  is 
appropriate for that locality (which may be nil);  

(d) That the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate having regard to:  
i. The character of the relevant locality (which means, in relation to a premises, 

the  locality where  they are  situated, and,  in  relation  to a vehicle, vessel or 
stall, any locality where it is desired to use it as a sex establishment);  

ii. The use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or  
iii. The  layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall  in 

respect of which the application is made.  

Page 64



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 25
 

Appendix 2: Standard conditions ‐ sex shops / sex cinema 
 
Management of the Premises  

 The  Licence Holder  or  responsible  person  over  the  age  of  18  nominated  by  him  and 
notified  in writing  to  the Council  for  the purpose of managing  the  sex  establishment 
(“the manager”), shall have personal responsibility for and be present on the Premises 
at all times when the Premises are open to the public. 

 Where the Licence Holder  is a body corporate or an  incorporated body, any change of 
director,  company  secretary  or  other  person  responsible  for  the management  of  the 
body  shall  be  notified  in writing  to  the  Council within  14  days  of  such  change.  The 
Council may require further written details  in respect of the change of personnel to be 
provided within 14 days of any written request from the Council.  

 A copy of the licence shall at all times be displayed in a conspicuous position in a public 
area inside the Premises.  

 The Licence Holder shall retain control over all parts of the Premises and shall not  let, 
licence or part with possession of any part. The Council must be notified immediately in 
the event that any part of the Premises is affected by the termination of a lease or other 
event affecting the Licence Holder’s control of the Premises.  

 The  Licence  Holder  shall  ensure  that  the  public  is  not  admitted  to  any  part  of  the 
Premises that has not been licensed.  

 No person under  the age of 18 shall be admitted  to  the Premises and a notice  to  this 
effect shall be displayed on the outside of the Premises. No person under the age of 18 
shall be employed to work at the licensed premises.  

 Neither the Licence Holder nor any employee or agent shall seek to obtain custom  for 
the  licensed premises outside or  in  the vicinity of  the Premises, by means of personal 
solicitation, flyers, handouts or similar.  

 Access must be afforded at all  reasonable  times  to authorised Officers of  the Council, 
Police and Fire Service.  

 The Licence Holder shall ensure that no part of the  licensed premises shall be used by 
prostitutes (male or female) for soliciting or for any immoral purposes.  

 The Premises shall not, without the written consent of the Council, be opened and used 
for the purposes for which the licence is granted on Christmas Day or Good Friday.  

 
Conduct of the Premises  

 No change from a sex cinema to a sex shop or a sex shop to a sex cinema shall be made 
without the written consent of the Council.  

 A sex shop shall be conducted primarily for the purpose of the sale of goods by retail.  

 No  film  or  video  recording  (or  computer  game)  shall  be  exhibited,  sold  or  supplied 
unless  it  has  been  passed  by  the  British  Board  of  Film  Classification  and  bears  a 
certificate to the effect.  

 
External Appearance  

 The holder of a sex establishment licence shall exhibit on the outside of the Premises a 
notice containing the words ‘No person under the age of 18 allowed. People appearing 
to be under the age of 25 will be required to show proof of their age.’ 

 No external loudspeakers may be installed.  

 Unless  approved  in  writing  by  the  Council’s  Assistant  Director  Community 
ServicesDirector  of  Leisure  and Wellbeing  Services,  there  shall  be  no  advertisements, 

Page 65



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 26
 

notices, photographs,  illustrations, statements of any kind or similar  items displayed so 
as to be visible from the exterior of the premises.  

 The design of  the  front elevation of  the  shop  shall be approved by  the Council which 
may  include  reference  to  the  name  of  the  shop,  its  postal  address,  opening  hours, 
website  address  and  any  security  grilles/shutters.  The  Council  shall  approve  the  final 
exterior signage, including the shop name which shall be of an inoffensive nature.  

 The exterior and entrance to the  licensed premises shall be suitably screened so as to 
prevent any part of the interior being visible from outside the premises.  

 There  shall  be  a  solid  outer  and  inner  door  fitted with  automatic  closures with  such 
devices being maintained  in good working order. Both doors shall be kept closed at all 
times except when being used for access or egress.  

 On the external facing of the inner door, there shall be displayed a notice in accordance 
with the requirements of the Indecent Displays (Control) Act 1981 namely:  
“WARNING Persons passing beyond this notice will find material or activities on display 
which they may consider indecent. No admittance to persons under 18 years of age”  

 
State, Condition and Layout of the Premises  

 The Licence Holder shall maintain the licensed premises in good order, repair and state 
of cleanliness at all times, which will include the need to maintain the front and rear of 
the premises in a clean and tidy condition. 

 The Licence Holder shall take appropriate measures to ensure that refuse and discarded 
sex articles or waste stock  from  the premises are kept secure  from public accessibility 
pending removal from site.  

 No access shall be permitted through the Premises to any other Premises adjoining or 
adjacent except in the case of emergency.  

 Suitable  lighting  shall  be  in  operation  continuously  during  the  time  that  the  licensed 
premises are open to the public. Such lighting to be sufficient to enable persons therein 
to  see  clearly  all  parts  of  the  premises  and  to  easily  read  any  literature  or  notices 
displayed to customers.  

 Alterations or additions, either internal or external, shall be not be made to the licensed 
premises (including any facilities,  lighting, construction, decoration, building services or 
furnishings)  without  prior  written  consent  from  the  Council’s  Assistant  Director 
Community ServicesDirector of Leisure and Wellbeing Services. Without prejudice to the 
foregoing, the areas provided for ingress, egress and circulation of the public within the 
premises shall not be reduced, obstructed or altered without prior written consent from 
the Council’s Assistant Director Community  ServicesDirector of  Leisure  and Wellbeing 
Services.  

 Any  facilities  for  previewing  films,  video  recordings  or  other  similar material  shall  be 
physically separated from the display area of the shop in such a manner that no material 
being displayed by way of preview shall be visible or audible outside the preview area.  

 No fastenings of any description shall be fitted upon any booth or cubicle within the sex 
establishment nor shall more  than one person  (including any employee) be present  in 
any such booth or cubicle at any time.  

 
Safety and Security  

 The Licence Holder take the necessary action to check the age of customers entering the 
shop who appear to be between the ages of 18 and 25 in order to ensure that they are 
not younger than 18.  

Page 66



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 27
 

 Whilst the licensed premises are in use, no door or other barrier which exists within the 
areas provided for ingress, egress and circulation of the public shall be locked or bolted 
in any manner which prevents it being opened immediately and easily.  

 
Goods Available in Sex Shops  

 The Licence Holder shall without charge display make available free literature regarding 
counselling on matters  related  to  sexual problems as may be published by  the Family 
Planning Association, and by such other similar organisations from time to time and  in 
particular any such material related to sexually transmitted diseases. Such literature is to 
be displayed in a prominent position adjacent to all payment points in the premises.  

 
 

Page 67



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 28
 

Appendix 3: Standard conditions ‐ SEVs  
 

 The  Licence Holder  or  responsible  person  over  the  age  of  18  nominated  by  him  and 
notified  in writing  to  the Council  for  the purpose of managing  the  sex  establishment 
(“the manager”), shall have personal responsibility for and be present on the Premises 
at all times when the Premises are open to the public. 

 A copy of the licence shall at all times be displayed in a conspicuous position in a public 
area inside the Premises.  

 A minimum of 2 security staff, of which at least 1 must be female, shall be employed by 
the  Licence Holder and  located  in  the  immediate vicinity of  the entrance door  to  the 
premises  to assist  the Licence Holder  in ensuring  that good order  is maintained  in  the 
premises.  

 Any  individual  employed  on  the  Premises  to  conduct  a  security  activity  (within  the 
meaning of section paragraph 2(1) (a) of schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 
2001) must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 

 The Licence Holder must ensure that staff are employed to supervise the interior of the 
Premises including toilets whilst the premises are open for business.  

 No  person  under  the  age  of  18  shall  be  admitted  to  the  Premises.  Customers who 
appear to be under the age of 25 must be asked to provide photographic proof of their 
age.  The  Licence  Holder  must  provide  prominent  notices  at  each  entrance  to  the 
Premises to this effect.  

 Performers  and  staff  shall  be  aged  not  less  than  18  years.  The  Licence  Holder must 
maintain adequate  records of  the names, addresses and dates of birth of performers 
including  adequate  identity  checks.  Proof  of  age  checks  shall  be  conducted  at  first 
employment of all employees and performers. A suitable record shall be maintained of 
all such checks.  

 The  employment  records  and  eligibility  to  work  in  the  UK  of  all  employees  and 
performers and  staff  shall be checked on  first employment. A  suitable  record  shall be 
maintained of all such checks. 

 An appropriate room shall be set aside to provide a private changing and rest area for 
performers to which customers are not admitted.  

 The Licence Holder shall not permit the display outside of the Premises of photographs 
or other images which indicate or suggest that striptease or similar entertainment takes 
place on the Premises.  

 The Licence Holder shall ensure to the satisfaction of the Assistant Director Community 
ServicesDirector of Leisure and Wellbeing Services  that  the exterior of  the premises  is 
maintained  to  a  satisfactory  standard.  At  no  point may  performers  be  visible  from 
outside  of  the  Premises.  Performers  (or  those  implied  to  be  performers)  must  not 
exhibit in the entrance way or in the vicinity of the premises.  

 Performers shall only perform on the stage area, or to seated customers or in such other 
areas of  the  licensed premises as may be agreed  in writing by  the Council’s Assistant 
Director Community ServicesDirector of Leisure and Wellbeing Services. 

 Performers may not accept any  telephone number, email address, address or  contact 
information from any customer.  

 Performers must never be alone in the company of a Customer except in an area open 
to the public within the Premises.  

Page 68



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 29
 

 The Licence Holder is to ensure a sufficient number of security staff are employed inside 
the Premises whilst sexual entertainment  is provided  to supervise  the Performers and 
Customers.  

 The  Licence Holder must  ensure  that  during  performances  of  any  kind  to which  this 
Licence relates:  

(1) Customers do not dance at any  time except  in areas specifically designated 
by the Council as being separate from areas for sexual entertainment  

(2) Customers must remain appropriately clothed at all times.  

 The Licence Holder shall prepare, implement, maintain and enforce the following: 
(1) A written code of practice for performers 
(2) A written code of practice for all other staff 
(3) A written policy to protect the welfare of performers 
(4) Written rules for customers 

 Rules for customers shall be prominently displayed within the premises and displayed at 
each customer table and in the bar area. 

 All staff and performers shall receive training on all codes of conduct, policies and rules 
prior  to  commencing  their  employment  or  first  performance.  A  record  shall  be 
maintained of such training. 

 The  Licence  Holder  shall  provide  upon  request  copies  of  any  documents  reasonably 
required  by  an  authorised  Officer  of  the  Council  in  relation  to  compliance with  this 
Licence.  

Page 69



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 30
 

Appendix 4: List of potential conditions 
 
Protection of customers: 

 Entry prices and any prices for compulsory purchases (such as beverages) to be clearly 
displayed on the exterior of the premises. 

 All charges for products and services to be prominently displayed within the premises. 

 No charge shall be applied unless the customer has had the opportunity to read and 
understand the tariff of charge. 

 Rules  for  customers  shall  be  prominently  displayed within  the  premises.  In  Sexual 
Entertainment Venues, rules must be displayed at each customer table and in the bar 
area. 

 DVDs shall not be sold or supplied unless the DVD (a) has been passed by the British 
Board  of  Film  Classification,  (b)  is  a  reproduction  authorised  by  the  owner  of  the 
copyright and (c) bears certificates to those effects. 

 No  films may be shown at the premises unless they have been passed by the British 
Board of Film Classification. 

 
 
Children / non customers: 

 No customers or staff to be under 18 years old. 

 The  Licence Holder  shall  at  all  times  keep  and maintain  at  the  licensed  premises  a 
written record of the names, addresses and dates of birth of all persons employed at 
the  premises  whether  upon  full  or  part  time  basis  and  be  made  available  to  an 
Authorised Officer of the Council, or Police, upon request. 

 No display or advertisement shall be permitted on the exterior of the premises other 
than  the name and  / or address of  the premises,  the  times of opening and  suitable 
warning describing the nature of the activities of the business and that no one under 
18 years of age is allowed to enter the premises.  

 A ‘Challenge 25’ Policy shall be operated at the premises. 

 A record of all public refusals shall be operated and maintained. The record shall be 
made available to an Authorised Officer of the Council, or Police, upon request. 

 Controls on exterior advertising and signage. 

 The  Interior of the premises shall not be visible to passers by  ‐  i.e. the prevention of 
exterior visibility into the premises. 

 Controls on leafleting. 

 Controls on use of cruising cars to solicit customers. 

 Controls on solicitation outside premises. 

 Controls on other advertising. 

 Staff trained in codes for conduct for performers and customers. 
 
 
Protection for performers / prevention of crime and disorder: 

 A  performer  on  any  stage  area must  at  all  times wear  at  least  a G‐string  during  the 
performance.  

 Performers  must  remain  clothed  in  public  areas  and  all  other  areas  except  while 
performing  in  areas  specified  by  the  Council  as where  sexual  entertainment may  be 
provided.  

 Performers must dress fully at the end of each performance.  

Page 70



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 31
 

 

 The Licence Holder must ensure that during a performance:  
(1) Customers must remain seated during the entire performance 
(2) At  least  one  metre  separation  shall  be  provided  and  enforced  between 

performers and audience, so that staff can police a ‘no contact rule’. 
(3) Performers must not part their legs, sit or straddle the customer  
(4) Performers must not place their feet on the seats.  

 The  Licence Holder must  ensure  that  during  performances  of  any  kind  to which  this 
Licence relates:  

(1) Performers may not perform any act that simulates any sexual act; 
(2) Performers  may  not  intentionally  touch  a  customer  any  time  during  the 

performance unless absolutely accidentally or due to a third party; 
(3) Performers  may  not  use  inappropriate,  suggestive  or  sexually  graphic 

language at any time; 
(4) Performers must never perform with another performer; 
(5) Performers must  not  engage  in  communications  that  could  be  deemed  as 

acts of prostitution or solicitation, even  if the Performer has no  intention of 
carrying out the act; 

(6) There is no audience participation.  
A written code of conduct for performers shall be prepared, implemented, maintained 
and enforced at the premises.  

 Performers  shall  receive  training  in  the written  code  of  conduct.  A  record  shall  be 
maintained of such training. 

 Written rules of conduct for customers shall be prepared, maintained and enforced at 
the premises. Staff shall direct customers’ attention specifically to the rules of conduct 
prior to entry to the premises.  

 All  staff,  performer  and  customer  codes  of  conduct  and  rules  shall  be  prominently 
displayed within the premises. 

 All staff and performers shall receive training on all codes of conduct and rules prior to 
commencing their employment or  first performance. Suitable refresher training shall 
be provided on a [insert frequency] basis. A suitable record of all such training shall be 
maintained. 

 No  contact  is  allowed  between  performers  and  audience,  before,  during  and  after 
performance. 

 At least one metre separation shall be provided and enforced between performers and 
audience, so that staff can police a ‘no contact rule’. 

 Controls on levels of nudity. 

 Prohibition on use of sex articles. 

 Prohibition of performers touching their own sexual organs. 

 Performers confined to stage area. 

 Segregation of audience and performers. 

 No performance to standing customers. 

 Exit routes for performers to be kept clear. 

 No audience participation. 

 All alcohol service to seated customers only. 

 Control of gratuities. 

 Secure dressing rooms. 

 Separate sanitary facilities for performers. 

Page 71



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 32
 

 Secure exterior smoking areas for performers. 

 Availability of free refreshments for performers. 

 Prevention of fining of performers. 

 Drug monitoring. 

 Secure transport from premises. 

 Qualified ‘house mother’ to be employed to ensure the welfare of performers. 

 No photography. 
 
 
The premises: 

 The  Licence  Holder  shall  ensure  that  CCTV  is  installed  and  maintained  to  the 
satisfaction  of  Lancashire  Constabulary  Licensing  Unit  and  that  any  images  are  (a) 
retained for a period of at least 31 days and (b) made available on request to a police 
officer or authorised officer of the Council.  

 Suitable access and egress for disabled persons shall be provided.  

 The provision and use of private booths within the premises is prohibited. 

 Suitable means  shall be  employed  to prevent of  access by  customers  to non‐public 
areas. 

 No aspect of  the premises or  the  licence may be altered without  the consent of  the 
Council. 

 Suitable means  of  escape  shall  be  provided  and maintained  to  the  satisfaction  of 
Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service. 

 
 
Potential Nuisance: 

 The hours the premises shall be open to the public are: [insert opening hours] 

 A  notice  shall  be  displayed  prominently  at  each  exit  to  the  premises  requesting 
customers to respect others and to leave the premises quietly. 

 A documented dispersal policy shall be provided and maintained for the premises. 

 A dedicated taxi service shall be provided for customers. 

 Suitable door  supervision  shall be provided at all  times  the premises  is open  to  the 
public. All door supervisors must be registered with the Security Industry Authority.  

 
 
Legal compliance: 

 Proof  of  age  checks  shall  be  conducted  at  first  employment  of  all  employees  and 
performers. A suitable record shall be maintained of all such checks. 

 The  employment  records  and  eligibility  to  work  in  the  UK  of  all  employees  and 
performers shall be checked on a  [insert  frequency] basis. A  suitable  record  shall be 
maintained of all such checks. 

 Retention of payment / remuneration records shall be maintained.  

 All  performers  shall  be  subject  to  a  suitable  job  interview  at  first  employment  and 
written confirmation shall be maintained to ensure that performers are participating 
voluntarily. A suitable record shall be maintained. 

 

Page 72



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 33
 

Management standards: 

 Training of Licence Holder and management. 

 Presence of Licence Holder / written delegate at all times. 

 Secure retention of CCTV recorded material and disclosure to authorised persons. 

 Specific levels of door/floor supervision including performance areas. 

 Training of door staff in club rules. 

 Display of notices informing customers of presence of CCTV. 

 Performers to sign for receipt of code of conduct. 

 Prevention of solicitation. 

 Maintenance of incident books, refusals books and list of any persons banned from the 
premises. 

 The Licence Holder, or any person acting or purporting  to act on his behalf, shall be 
responsible for ensuring that the conditions of the Licence are complied with and will 
be held responsible for any breach thereof.  

 Admission  shall  be  given  at  all  reasonable  times  to  the  Police  and  to  Authorised 
Officers of the Council.  

 The  Licence  and  attached  conditions  shall  be  displayed  on  the  premises  in  such  a 
position as to be readily visible for inspection. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



West Lancashire Borough Council – Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 20183 34
 

Appendix 5: Useful contacts 
 

Further  information on this Policy Statement or the  licensing of Sex Establishments can be 
obtained  from  the  Council’s  Licensing  Service.  The  Assistant  Director  Community 
ServicesDirector of Leisure and Wellbeing Services, David Tilleray, has overall responsibility 
for the Licensing Service. 
 
Licensing Service: 
Paul Charlson – Commercial, Safety and Licensing Manager 
 
West Lancashire Borough Council, Robert Hodge Centre, Stanley Way, Skelmersdale WN8 
8EE   
Telephone:  01695 585015 
Fax:    01695 585126 
Email:    licensing.enquiries@westlancs.gov.uk 
Internet:  www.westlancs.gov.uk/licensing 
 
 
Other contacts: 
 
Lancashire Constabulary:  
Preston Police Station Operating Centre 
Lancaster Road North 
Preston PR1 2SA 
 
Telephone: 01772 209794 
Email: 
simon.ashcroft@lancashire.pnn.police.uk 
 

Planning: 
West Lancashire Borough Council 
Development Control Service 
52 Derby Street, Ormskirk 
Lancashire L39 2DF 
 
Telephone: 01695 577177 
Email: plan.apps@westlancs.gov.uk 
 

 
 

 

Page 74


	Agenda
	5 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
	6 MINUTES
	7 MINUTES OF SUB- COMMITTEES
	Minutes , 21/09/2016 Licensing Sub-Committee
	Minutes , 24/01/2017 Licensing Sub-Committee
	Minutes , 10/02/2017 Licensing Sub-Committee
	Minutes , 24/05/2017 Licensing Sub-Committee
	Minutes , 06/06/2017 Licensing Sub-Committee

	8 APPROVAL OF REVISED SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENSING POLICY
	App1 SEV Policy EIA 280917
	App 2 SEV consultation responses 280917
	App 3 WLBC Sex Licensing Policy 2018 FINAL


